
MOUNTAIN BROOK CITY COUNCIL 
PRE-MEETING AGENDA 

PRE-COUNCIL ROOM (A-106) CITY HALL 
56 CHURCH STREET 

MOUNTAIN BROOK, AL 35213 
August 25,2014 - 6:15 P.M. 

1. One-time bonus for RSA and CIGNA retirees - Sam Gaston & Steve Boone. (See 
attached information. This item may be added to the formal agenda.) 

2. Parks/Recreation organizational and staffing study presentation - Steve Eagan of 
The Mercer Group. (See attached information.) 

3. Expungement Law update - Steve Shaw. 

4. Executive Session. 



Sam Gaston 

Page 1 of 1 

From: Amy Stephens 
Sent: Thursday, July 03,2014 9:28 AM 

To: Sam Gaston 
Cc: Steve Boone k .  .-. 
Subject: ~evisedd la Retiree btimated Bonus Worksheet 

Attachments: 20140627 . .-. .-I -,... nated Bonus Worksheet.xlsx 

Hi Sam: 
I have received hire and retire dates for Eugene Cole from 
Kelly Roke, our Prudential Representative. The worksheet has 
been updated to reflect the new information (revised tab at 
bottom of worksheet) 

- .. . L 1 ' 

Please note thait Kelly was not able to provide hire dates for 
Theron Houlditch (Shelia Ross) or Alvin Marcrum (Mary 
Taylor). 

Amy Stephens 
Human Resources I Pays011 
City of Mountain Brook 
P.O. Box 130009, Mountain Brook, AL 3521 3 
(p) 205.802.3822 J (f) 205.879.6913 1 stephe@mtnbmok.org 1 
steuhedhushrnaiit.com (secure email) ( htb://www.mtnbrook.org 

PRNACYECONFIDEM NOTICE: fhb b m s O  communkatkn m y  conhin privab, confickntfot, or kg* prMkged i n f o r m  
htendsd fortha rob us8 of the ~~ andlor duly ruthosirsd d p h t ( 8 ) .  H you am not ths intendad redp&nt or hevs reedwd this 
comnunkatkn In m r ,  please ndiljr the rsnder hmmdlataly by small or by kbphons at 1-Z054023(#2. .nd debb r0 copies dthis annll, 
hduding rU -, wilhut mdhg them or 8avhg them b your comipubior m y  rttscl#d sbmga m. If you m ihs lnlrnded 
m b k n t y o u w O I ~ t o r r c u r s ~ ~ n b c o n f o ~ Q 8 Y r o d i c r b b ~ M d l o r f r d s m l m u i ~ n l o ~ b t h s ~ n d  



ClGNA Retiree Roster 
Acl 

I 

t 2014-429 One-Time Bonus Calculation Miniurnurn $ 300.00 

$ 2.00 
Name DOH Retired Mos Service Bonus 

Information Received F 

Retirement Date: 1-14 

Retirement Date: 3-1-5 

**No records found for employees in Red 



Page 1 of 2 

Sam Gaston 

From: Steve Boone 
Sent: Tuesday, June 24,2014 8:58 AM 

To: Sam Gaston 

Subject: Fwd: ARSEA Letter 
Attachments: ARSEA Letter 5-16-14.pdf 

RSA one-time bonus amounts by group: 
City $60,124 
Library $ 2,368 
Park $ 1,502 
RSA Total $63,994 

I 

To determine equivalent bonus for CIGNA retirees, I need to 
determine months of service for each living CIGNA retiree then 
apply the formula to each individuals months of service. I prefer not 
to go to that effort unless the Council determines that it wants to pay 
the bonus. Considering the 2015 bottom line is not known, the 
unhded liability, and the $600,000 BOE request, I doubt the 
Council will want to pay this bonus. We can revisit this issue later in 
July or even August when we have a bottom line. The bonuses will 
be paid in October. 
---------- Forwarded message ---------- 
From: LaTorya Mines <rninesl@mtnbrook.orp 
Date: Tue, Jun 24,2014 at 7:25 AM 
Subject: ARSEA Letter 
To: Steve Boone ~boones@mtnbFook.ore) 

Please find the attached document for your reviewiuse. 

- 
LaTorya Mines 
Parks & Recreation 
City of Mountah Brook 
rninesl@mtnbmok.org 
Ph: J20.5) 802-3877 
Fax:- 



May 9,2014 

Attn: Mountian Brook Park & Recreation Board 

Having been signed into law, Act #2014-429 authorizes public boards participating 
in the Employees' Retirement System of Alabama to fund a one-time bonus for 
their retirees. 

Using a sliding scale formula and based upon length of creditable service ($2.00 a 
month x 12 months x years of service) retirees with 25 years of service, for 
example, would receive a bonus of $600. Included in the legislation is a provision 
for those with less than 25 years, providing a minimum payment of $300. 

The importance of even this smalf, one-time addition to the benefits of your 
retirees can hardly be overstated. 

There is a short window of opportunity for the public boards to approve the 
funding for this bonus. Untike traditional cost of living adjustments (COLAS), the 
bonus cannot be approved in subsequent years. If not granted in 2014, it goes 
away forever. With that in mind, the following estimated cost of funding this one- 
time lump sum bonus is being provided to you now: 

Per our legislation, RSA will pay the bonus in October for those public boards 
opting to grant it. RSA will then recoup the cost by adding it to  each participating 
local boards' monthly employer contribution, beginning October 1,2015. (RSA 
will soon provide the actual cost and steps necessary to fund this bonus.) If you 
have any questions please contact us a t  334-834-9116. 



CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, 
ALABAMA 

MANAGEMENT AND ORGANIZATIONAL STUDY 
OF THE 

PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT 

DFUFT REPORT 



- 
CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 

MNAGEMENT AND ORGANIZATIONAL STUDY 
OF THE 

PARKS AND l2EC.ATlOlVDEPARTMENT 

DRAFT RIZPORT 

THE MERCER GROUP, INC. 

1000 Whitlock Avenue 
Suite 320-129 

Marietta, Georgia 30064 

770-425-1775 Phone 
770-425-8561 Fax 

June 4,2014 



1000- Wlriflack Avenrie 
S~iite 320-129 

Marielfa, Georgia 30064 
Pllorte 770-425-1 775 
F ~ x  770-425-8561 

~v~~~~v.~trer~~~r~rn~~nitc.rortt 

June 4,2014 

Mr. Sam Gaston 
City Manager 
56 Church Street 
Mountain Brook, Alabama 35213 

Ms. Shanda Williams 
Parks & Recreation Superintendent 
3698 Bethune Drive 
Mountain Brook, Alabama 35223 

Dear Mr. Gaston and Ms. Williams: 

The Mercer Group, Inc. is pleased to present our Draft Report for the Management and 
Organizational Study (the Management Study) of the Parks & Recreation Department. 

OWRVIEW OF THE REPORT 

Our report is based on our proposal of September 1, 2013 and is presented in the following ten 
chapters. Because Parks & Recreation (Parks) is smaller than Public Works, we are organizing 
the Parks report by finctions instead of by divisions as in the Public Works report. Each chapter 
presents findings, analyses, and recommendations relating to that chapter's topics. 

I. Overview of the Project 

11. Current Situation 

111. Parks & Recreation Assessment 

IV. Implementation 

V. Exhibits 



Mr. Sam Gaston, City Manager 
Ms. Shanda Williams, Parks & Recreation Superintendent 
City of Mountain Brook, Alabama 
June 4,2014 
Page 2 

OVERALL ASSESSMENT OF THE DEPARTMENT 

The Department of Parks & Recreation is providing a high level of service to the City of 
Mountain Brook and its residents. Management and employees are committed to meeting 
the expectations of the Mayor and City Council, the Park Board, the City Manager, 
strategic partners (such as Mountain Brook Schools and several athletic associations), and 
Mountain Brook residents. Parks staff is knowledgeable, hard-working, and cohesive. 
With a new Superintendent, management practices and philosophy will be changing (and 
are improving per staff interviews) as in the Department of Public Works. 

Kev StrengtIis 

P An energetic and cohesive Park Board 
P Quality and quantity of resources and work performed by Parks staff 
> Knowledgeable and experienced employees 
P The new Parks Superintendent 
9 A new facility and good equipment, with a couple of exceptions 

Kev Weaknesses 

> The strategic direction of the department and its programs, as well as those of strategic 
partners (e.g., MB Athletics) is not clearly and formally defined 

P Strategic partners in deIivering recreation services operate VERY independently with 
little collaboration about service delivery options 

> StaEng levels (before a position was added to the budget) 
> Lack a formal maintenance management system with few performance, activity, and cost 

of service measures and reports 
P Lack an asset management system with inventories of and condition assessments for 

public infrastructure 

Kev Ouuortunities 

P New approach to managing and operations with the new Superintendent 
P GIs, asset and maintenance management, and other technology applications already 

available in the City 
P New approaches to delivering services (higher standards, cross-utilization, employee 

development, technology application, contracting vs. in-house, colIaboration) 

Kev Threats 

9 Emergencies like tornadoes and bad storms 
> Not filling vacant positions or cuts to current stafing levels 



Mr. Sam Gaston, City Manager 
Ms. Shanda Williams, Parks & Recreation Superintendent 
City of Mountain Brook, Alabama 
June 4,2014 
Page 3 

The Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department is an effective steward of the City's 
parks and recreation infrastructure and is extremely responsive to the expectations of 
elected officials and citizens, particuIarly in terms of parks appearance and field conditions. 

Parks' satisfaction scores from the 2014 Citizen Survey conducted by the ETC Institute 
were very high (90% of respondents scored 4 or 5 on a 5-point scale where 5 is "very satisfied") 
compared to an average score of 71% for the comparative group of 53 communities. Parks' 
scores for six parks-specific questions also were very high (76% to 94% scored 4 or 5 vs. 62% to 
77% in other communities). 

Scores on the Mercer surveys were very high compared to other clients and to 2003 Parks & 
Recreation results. See Chapter II and Exhibit 3-6 in Chapter V for details. The Values Survey, 
however, indicates the need to work on and communicate departmentaI values. 

Our report, therefore, recommends fine-tuning and expansion of what is in place and 
evolving with a relatively new Superintendent. 

Key recommendations are: 

1.) Governance: Parks Board members are well-qualified and committed to parks and 
recreation services. The Board operates cohesively as an effective advisor to the Mayor 
and City Council, the City Manager, and to the Parks Superintendent. 

Create a single "Friends of the Parks" organization (a committee or foundation) to raise 
h d s  for special needs. This ~ o u p  would subsume a relatively inactive "Friends of 
Jemison Park." The City has a long history of champions rising up to generate public 
interest and funds for projects like the Crestline Tot Lot. This group would formalize this 
championing process. 

2.) Strateeic Direction: Review the department's values to confirm empIo yee understanding 
and buy-in, as well as develop mission-supporting goals, objectives, and performance 
measures to ensure City officials have a full understanding of the return on their 
investment in Parks & Recreation staff and other resources. 

Create a Functional Business Plan for the department to document these and other 
strategic elements. The plan would connect to the recommended Parks & Recreation 
Plan, which would serve as a long-range needs assessment relating to infrastructure and 
recreational services. 



Mr. Sam Gaston, City Manager 
Ms. Shanda Williams, Parks & Recreation Superintendent 
City of Mountain Brook, Alabama 
June 4,2014 
Page 4 

3.) Service Deliverv Structure: Continue to review the mix of in-house and contracted 
services using Mercer's Decision Criteria for Contracting and Collaboration. The 
current mix of service providers is reasonable compared to other communities and 
industry best practices. 

Create a coordinating body, perhaps called the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation 
Coordinating Council, to ensure a11 parties involved in serving the community are 
collaborating optimally and that a11 identified community needs are met. 

4.) Organization and Staffing: Continue the current organization plan as shown on Exhibit 
1. We suppod creation of the Odd Jobs crew, funding of the 16Ih position, and adding a 
171h position if the Parks Board and Mayor and City Council approve higher standards for 
parks and islands. The 1 7Ih position would be added to the Route Crew. 

We understand the Parks Crew Labor Supervisor position will be reviewed by the 
Jefferson County Personnel Board. Our analysis of the responsibilities of the Parks, 
Route, and Complex Labor Supervisors do not find a distinct difference in duties, staff to 
supervisor, or areas of responsibility. Perhaps all three positions should be reviewed? 

We like the practice of rotating crews between the Route and Complex Crews, and 
suggest it be expanded to include the Parks Crew. This change expands cross-utilization 
possibilities across the department. 

5.) Onerations Management: As in Public Works, we support improvements in operational 
recordkeeping and reporting to better "manage the numbers," which total over 22,000 
available work hours for 14 field employees (at 1,600 working hours each year). Parks 
may need an Asset Management Information System to accomplish this objective. 

Continue current scheduling and work day practices, which seem highly effective, but 
tighten the lunch period protocol through better routing to save travel time to/fiom the 
yard both at lunch time and at the end of the day. 

6.) Resource Management: Review equipment and tool needs for the next budget cycle. 
Continue the practice of the Odd Job Crew maintaining equipment, but ensure small 
engine mechanics are certified. 

Invest in enhancements at certain parks where amenities are aging and identify future 
needs through the Parks & Recreation Master Plan. 

With the development of Parks Functional Business Plan and better work/cost data fiom 
"managing the numbers," add a return on investment element to the budget process. 

Develop an Absence Policy to limit morning call-ins. 



Mr. Sam Gaston, City Manager 
Ms. Shanda Williams, Parks & Recreation Superintendent 
City of Mountain Brook, Alabama 
June 4,2014 
Page 5 

NEXT STEPS 

The next step in the study process is to review the Draft Report with you two then create an 
updated draft for the Project Steering Committee, the Parks Board, and Parks & Recreation staff 
(at a highlight IeveI). 

Then, once we determine corrections, clarifications, and edits, we will prepare a final report and 
make a Final Presentation to the Mayor and City Council, the Parks Board, and Parks employees. 

AAer the presentation, the City and Parks need to review and fine-tune, then follow, the 
Implementation Plan described in Chapter IV and on Exhibit 9 to ensure recommendations in 
the Mercer study are fully implemented. 

If you have any questions or require additional information regarding our proposal, please calI 
Steve Egan, our project manager and lead consultant, at 770-425-1 775, 

Very truly yours, 

6 7%- +?, 1-• 
THE MERCER GROUP, INC. 
James L. Mercer, President and CEO (Project Director) 
Stephen D. Egan, Jr., Senior Vice-President (Project Manager and Lead Consultant) 



Page 

- 

I. OVERVIEW OF THE PROJECT 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

A. SCOPE OF THE PROJECT 
B. PROJECT ACTIVITIES 

.. 

CURRENT SITUATION 

A. CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 
B. DEPARTMENT OF PARKS & FlECREATION 
C, SWOT ASSESSMENT 
D. CITIZEN SURVEY 
E. COMPARATIW ANALYSIS 
F, EMPLOYlEE SURVEYS 
G. ORGANIZATION/OPERATIONS QUESTIONNAIRE 
H. MANAGEMENT PHILOSOPHY PROFILE 

111. PARKS & RECREATION ASSESSMENT 

A. GOVERNANCE 
B. STRATEGIC DIRECTION 
C. SERVICE DELIVERY STRUCTURE 
D, ORGANIZATION AND STAFFING 
E. OPERATIONS MANAGEMENT 
F. RESOURCE MANAGEMENT 

IV. IMPLEMENTATION 

A. IMPLEMENTATION PROCESS 
Be IMPLEMENTATION ISSUES AND CHALLENGES 
C. IMPLEMENTATION PLAN AND SCORECARD 



Page 

V. EXHIBITS 

Exhibit 1: P&R Organization Plan 
Exhibit 2: Results of the SWOT Assessment 
Exhibit 3: Results of the Employee Surveys 
Exhibit 4: Master Employee Suwey Document 
Exhibit 5: Master Organizational Questionnaire 
Exhibit 6: Master Management Philosophy Profile 
Exhibit 7: Performance Indicators in Public Sewices 
Exhibit 8: Mercer's Decision Criteria for Contracting 

LIST OF TABLES AND FIGURES (In the Text) 

Table 1: DPW Overall Budget for 2010,2011,2012 
Table 2: DPW Division Budgets for 2010,2011,2012 
Table 3: Comparative Analysis Highlights(in process) 
Table 4: Employee Surveys Scores for Recent Clients 
Table 5: Results of the Management Philosophy Profile 
Table 6: Implementation Plan 

Figure 1: Mercer's Strategic Planning Model 



I. OVERVIEWOF THE PROJECT 
This chapter of the report describes the project's purpose, objectives, scope, issues, deliverables, 
and schedule. 

A. SCOPE OF THE PROJECT 
Similar to many well-run cities, Mountain Brook is concerned about the level of services 
provided to its citizens and the resources required to deliver these services. 

With a new Parks Superintendent and value received from a prior study in Public Works, the 
City believes this is a good time for an independent, objective review of the management, 
organization, and operations of the Parks & Recreation Department (Parks or the Parks 
Department). 

Issues to be studied are a combination of the issues that Mercer reviews in our comprehensive 
Management and Operations studies, as well as issues of primary concern to the City of 
Mountain Brook. 

Citv Issues 

In our telephone conversation with the City Manager and initial meeting with the Project 
Steering Committee, we identified the following key City issues to be reviewed in the study: 

1. Organizational Culture: Is workforce morale, cohesion, and teamwork high? 
(See Chapter 11, Current Situation) 

2. Organization: Does the organizational pIan include appropriate spans of control, 
organizational levels, hct ional  groupings, reporting relationships, and communications. 
(See Chapter VI, Organization and Staffing) 

3. Staffing: Are staffing IeveIs adequate compared to objective standards of workload and 
responsibilities assigned? Does Parks need for a Parks Maintenance Supervisor position. 
(See Chapter VI, Organization and Staffing) 

4. Operations: Are operational policies, procedures, and practices fully defined and 
implemented? Are these adequate for the Cahaba River Park and maintenance of isIands. 
Can Parks keep up with work assigned? 
(See Chapter VII, Operations Management) 

5. Facilities and Equipment: Are there enough fieIds? What is the impact of a growing 
Lacrosse league on field availability? Is equipment adequate? What about sharing a 
bucket truck with Public Works? 
(See Chapter VIII, Resource Management) 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 1 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



Mercer Issues 

Mercer's Fiffy Martagentent Issrres for Organizatiorral Inlprovenle~rt, which are at the core of 
a11 of our management and operations reviews, also were reviewed and assessed in this study. 

Governance 

I. Legal structure/forrn of government 
2. Role of governing and advisory boards and committees 
3. Staff support to these boards and committees 
4. Policy making and decision making processes 
5. Identification of and compliance with IegaI, regulatory, and policy requirements 

Service Delivery Structure 

6. Organizational location of services and activities both in and outside the city 
7. Interdepartmental cooperation among city government departments 
8. Intergovernmental cooperation across the region 
9. Use of aIternative service delivery opportunities, such as inter-local agreements, 

contracts, and privatization 
10. Comparison with industry best practices, benchmark communities, and Mercer's national 

experience 

Planning 

Strategic planning process compared to the Mercer Mode1 
Alignment of vision, mission, strategies, long-term goals, and short-term objectives (as 
they impact services Ievels, organization, and staffing) 

13. Capital projects planning process, documents, and oversight 
14. Financia1 planning and budgeting processes, documents, and oversight 
15. Operational planning processes, documents, and oversight 

Management 

16. Senior management organization structure 
17. Internal workings of the management team 
18. Management reporting and communications 
19. Documentation of policies and procedures 
20. Customer and stakeholder relations and communications 
21. Organizational culture and values (as they impact organization and staffing) 
22. Management philosophy and labor-management relations (as they impact organization 

and staffing) 

TWE MERCER GROUP. INC. 2 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



Onerations Management 

23. Work standards and specifications 
24. Work planning and scheduling 
25. Unit and crew organization and staffing 
26. Job classifications, roles, and duties 
27. Adequacy of facilities, equipment, tools, technology, communications, and materials 
28. Unit and crew supervision 
29. Unit and crew operations, work flow, productivity, and cost-effectiveness 
30, Yard, technical support, and administrative support operations 
3 1. Activity and performance reporting and analysis 
32. Emergency management plans and processes 

Resource Management 

33. Human Resource management policies, practices, and processes 
34. Training and career deveIopment program 
35. Safety and risk management program 
36. EmpIoyee and labor relations 

37. Financial management and reporting 
38. Financial transactions and processes 
39. Project and activity cost accounting 
40. Rates, fees, charges, and cost recovery practices 
41. Internal service fund operations and charges 

42. Information systems management and support services 
43. Computer and technoIogy applications (hardware and software) 
44. Records management, inchding documents, mapping, and GIs 

45. Purchasing and materials management 
46. Warehouse and stores operations 

47. Facilities management 
48. Facility and grounds maintenance operations 

49. Fleet and equipment management 
50. Equipment specifications, procurement, and repIacement 

THE MERCER GROUP, INC. 3 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



We also reviewed city and department-level issues based on the Mercer M O M  for Mnltngillg it1 

Lean Times. Key issues and challenges reviewed are: 

1.) Strategic Direction: Although many governments have "strategies, goals, and 
objectives," many lack a full-scope strategic pIan based on the Mercer Model. and many more 
fail to carry down the government-wide plan to departrnent/prograrn-level "functional business 
m." Often, therefore, the work of departments and employees is not aligned with the 
government's vision, strategies, and goals, and the various planning processes lack cohesion. 

2.) Service Delivery Structure: Service delivery alternatives range from full consolidations 
(City-County or City-CityfTown) to functional consolidations (Fire or Utilities) to collaboration 
or contracting for specific services (91 1 Center or solid waste) to coQDeration in funding social 
services or the arts. Mercer's Decision Criteria for Contracting (see Attachment C )  can assist in 
determining what options might work in specific circumstances. 

3.) Organization and Staffing Plans: Do decisions for the Strategic Direction and Service 
Delivery Structure result in a mission-driven organization and staffing plan? Are the right 
people in place to manage the organization and to cost-effectively deliver services? 

4.) Operations and Productivity Improvement: The performance measurement movement 
is one of many ways to ensure local government operations are productive. But, in addition, 
governments need ways to assess and monitor the day-to-day and hour-to-hour operational 
efficiency of staff, units, and programs. We call this "Managing the Numbers!" 

5.) Budget and Financial Management: Although it is hard to raise taxes, charges, and 
utility fees in economic hard time, local governments can implement performance-based and 
other budnetarv processes to ensure departments and programs are accomplishing government- 
defined goals and objectives, operating efficiently and effectively, and giving a solid return on 
the government's investment in people, facilities, equipment, and other resources. 

6.) People Management: Key needs for every government are to retain good employees and 
deveIop new hires and lower performers. The structure and application of pay plans (including 
performance-based rewards), benefits packages, organizational development and training 
programs, performance evaluations, and the like can bring employees to higher levels of 
performance and limit turnover and the attendant costs to hire, train, and retain good employees. 

7.) Technology Investments: For years, central administrative departments have invested in 
resource management systems and public works/utilities in technology to manage field 
operations, plants, and facilities. Other government programs have not necessariIy followed that 
trend to apply Asset and Work Management Systems, GIs, GPS units on vehicles, and hand-held 
field data recorders. A strategic approach is needed to optimize these resources and seIect 
reliable software and hardware vendors. 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 4 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (61412014) 



B. PROJECT ACTMTIES 

The Project started in December 2013 and required about six months to complete as we were 
concurrently doing a study of the Emmet O'Neal Library. Project activities included: 

9 Interviews with city officials, members of the Parks & Recreation Board (Parks Board), 
stakeholders (Mountain Brook Schools, athletic associations), support department 
directors, and Parks employees to gain an understanding of the City and of the 
department; 

b Review of city and Parks-related documents and reports; and 

P Application of Mercer surveys and questionnaires that were completed by fourteen Parks 
employees. 

The detailed project schedule by task and subtasks, with time frames and milestones, is 
presented in Chapter 111 of our proposal. The schedule provided time for: 

> A Kickoff meeting with the Project Steering Committee. 
> Parks staff to complete questionnaires and surveys. 
9 On-site interviews, site visits, and observation of work. 
b Data collection, research, and benchmarking. 
P Analysis of information and data collected during the study, development of preliminary 

findings and alternatives, and preparation of a draft report. 
> Project and status reports. 
9 Review of the draft report with the Project Steering Committee, along with a presentation 

to the Parks and Recreation Board and Parks employees. 
B Preparation of a final report, followed by a final presentation to the Mayor and City 

Council and to the Parks Board. 

The consultant was responsible for the following deliverables: 

9 Interim Status Reports: These informal reports to the City Manager and Parks 
Superintendent, as well as a short presentation to the Parks Board, were delivered at key 
project milestones defined at the project kickoff meeting. 

P Draft and Final Reports: We prepared Draft and Final Reports for the project, which 
detailed our findings, recommendations, and implementation plan. 

Presentation: Presentations to the Mayor and City Council and to the Parks Board were 
made at the conclusion of the project. 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 5 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 

- - - - -- 



IL CURRENT SITUATION 

This chapter of the report describes the City of Mountain Brook; documents the services and 
resources of the Parks & Recreation Department; and reviews the results of interviews, surveys, 
and questionnaires applied in the Management Study of the department. 

A. CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 

The City of Mountain Brook is a primarily residential community and a suburb of Birmingham. 
Mountain Brook had a population of 20,413 as if the 201 0 Census and 20,369 as of a 20 12 
estimate, with relatively slow, controlled growth. The City is noted for the quality of life and the 
excellence of its school system, parks, and recreation programs. 

The city was incorporated in 1942 and is governed by a Mayor and five-member City Council, 
which appoints a City Manager to run daily operations. 

The City's mission is to be "a professional organization committed to teamwork and excellence 
which promotes full participation in enhancing the quality of life for residents." 

Key city values are Integrity, Safety, Education, Community, Stewardship, and Beauty. 

For Fiscal Year 2014, the City employs about 225 people and has an annual a11 funds budget 
(including capital projects) of $39,158,179. Budgets for major funds are: 

P General Fund: $32,065,367 
b Capital Projects Fund: $ 2,030,848 
P Parks Board Fund: $ 114,300 (net of the city's General Fund contribution) 

As a h l l  service community, city departments include Police, Fire, Parks & Recreation, 
Finance and Administrative Services, Public Works, Inspections, and Planning. 

A Library Board governs the Emmet 09Neal Library in Crestline Village with day-to-day 
management by the Library Director who reports to the Board. 

THE MERCER GROUP. TNC. 6 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



B. DEPARTMENT OF PARKS & RECREATION 

Services 

The staff, strategic partners, and contractors of the Parks and Recreation Department 
provide a range of services for city residents and businesses, including, but not limited to: 

> Administration 
9 Capital improvements planning 
9 Construction projects 
9 Field maintenance, including dugouts, fences, and scoreboards 
k Turf maintenance 
9 Park maintenance 
> Building maintenance 
> Grounds maintenance 
9 Playground equipment maintenance 
P Small Engine equipment maintenance 
P Youth recreation programs 

Several operating and support services are provided by other governments, non-profit 
associations, and contractors: 

9 Maintenance: Contracted maintenance services include: 

Field lights 
Field lighting effectiveness study 
Major construction projects 
Pest control 
Security guard 
Trades (as needed) 

> Recreation: Recreational services are delivered by several non-profit athletic 
associations or private organizations, including: 

Mountain Brook Athletics 
Mountain Brook Soccer 
Mountain Brook Lacrosse 
Mountain Brook Gymnastics 
Traveling teams 
Private gyms and exercise facilities 
Country Clubs 

THE MERCER GROUP, INC. 7 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



Resources 

Budget 

The FY 2014 budget provides $1,160,470 in operating funds for the Department of Parks & 
Recreation. Special Projects, funded by the General and Capital Improvements funds, add 
$554,250 for improvements at Cahaba River Parks and improvements at various parks. 

Revenue sources and the number of employees are shown on Table 1 and expenditures 
categories and capital projects on Table 2. 

Table 1 
Overall Budgets for FY 20I2,2013,201# 

Transfer from General Fund $937,186 $1,015,980 
Association Fees 
Board of Education Fees 
Interest 
Miscellaneous 
Donations 
TOTAL: Actual or Budget %1,060,470 $1,134,545 $1,110,490 100.0% 
EMPLOYEES; Full-time and 16 FT 16 FT 15 FT 
Seasonal 4 Seasonal 4 Seasonal 4 Seasonal 

Table 2 
Overall Budgefs for FY 2012,2013,2014 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 8 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 

~ - -. 

Expenditure Categories 

Personnel (Salaries, Overtime, 
Benefits, Staff Development) 
Supplies and Expenses 
Contract Services 
Repairs & Maintenance 
Utilities and Communications 
Special Projects 
Equipment Replacement 
Transfer 
TOTAL: Actual o a u d g e t  
CHANGE: Year-to-Year 

FY 2012 
Actual 

$707,267 

80,5 1 1 
24,367 
76,097 
62,703 
95,972 
12 1,480 

$1,168,397 

FY 2013 
Projected 

$703,174 

62,34 1 
17,978 
74,7 1 7 
6 1,200 
75,750 

139,385 
- 

$1,134,545 
-2.9% 

FY 2014 
Budget 

$739,030 

7 1,000 
2 1.600 
84,600 
60,600 

750 
132,910 
- 

$1,110,490 
-2.1% 

Share of 
Budget 
66.5%+ 

6.4% 
1.9% 
7.6% 
5.5% 
,1% 

12.0% 

100.0% 



Exhibits I in Chapter V show the most current Organization and Staffing Chart for the 
department. The current plan shows a total of 16 positions assigned to major functions and 
crews as detailed below. 

The Superintendent reports to the City Manager and advises the Parks Board. The 
Superintendent is appointed by the City Manager. 

Budgeted positions assigned to each organizational unit are identified below. Positions on 
the most recent organization and staffing chart may be used slightly differently than impIied by 
the chart. Exceptions or recent changes are noted below. 

P Administration (2): Superintendent and Office Manager 

B Complex Crew (4): Labor Supervisor and Laborer (3 with new position for the 
springlswnmer sports season) 

P Odd Job Crew (2): Skilled Laborer (2) 

Note that two Skilled Laborers were recently moved from the Complex Crew to an Odd 
Jobs Crew under the direction of the Superintendent and supporting all other crews 

P Turf Crew (3): Turf Grass Supervisor, Skilled Laborer, and Laborer 

9 Route Crew (2): Labor Supervisor and Laborer 

9 Parks Crew (3): Labor Supervisor, Skilled Laborer, and Laborer 

Budgeted positions by position title are listed below. The Skilled Laborer and Laborer 
positions are classified by the Jefferson County Personnel Board (JCPB or Personnel 
Board): 

> Superintendent (1) 
9 Labor Supervisors (3) 
> Turf Grass Supervisor (1 ) 
9 Skilled Laborers (4) 
9 Laborers (6) 
P Ofice Manager/Administrative Assistant (I)  

A sixteenth position, a Laborer, was budgeted in FY 2012 and FY 2013, but not funded in 
FY 2014. This position recentIy was added to the budget to cover workload for Cahaba River 
Park. 

Parks' FY 2014 budget asked that a Labor Supervisor be reclassified to a Parks Maintenance 
Supervisor, but the request was not funded. 

TKE MERCER GROUP, INC. 9 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



Parks and Facilities 

The Parks Department operates out of a new compound tucked at the back/bottorn of the 
Mountain Brook Sports Complex with access to 1-459 via a rear access road and the City via 
the high school. Parks shares the area with Mountain Brook High School and the Gymnastics 
facility. The Parks operations facility includes an operations building (office, shop, and indoor 
storage), parking lot, outside equipment storage sheds, and materials storage areas. 

Other parks and recreation facilities include the following sites that total about 110 acres: 

P Cahaba River Park: 4.7 acre linear park is under development. 

> Canterbury Park: .6 acre park with a playground and picnic tables. 

Crestline Tot Lot: A .4 acre pocket park with playground equipment for young kids. 

> Irondale Furnace Park: 9 acre park with a walking trail and historical feature. 

P Jemison Park: 54 acre linear park and greenway with .6 mile walking trail. 

P Mountain Brook Athletic Complex: 10-acre facility wrapping around the high schools 
includes six baseball/softbaIl fields, three soccer fields, six tennis courts, a children's 
pIayground, concession stand, and restroom facilities. 

P Mountain Brook Presbyterian Church: 1.7 acre park with a .7-mile public walking 
trail that circIes the church. 

> Overton Park: A 3.1 acre park (with the Chabad Center) has a playground, rest rooms, 
walking path, lawn, tennis and basketball courts, and a pavilion available for rental, 

9 Rathmell Sports Park: This complex has six soccer/lacrosse fields, a concession area, 
and rest room facility. In cooperation with the city, the complex was developed and is 
operated and maintained by the Mountain Brook Sports Foundation (a partnership of 
soccer and lacrosse organizations), 

9 School Sports Fields: Parks maintains 12.8 acres of sports fields at Brookwood 
Elementary School, Mountain Brook Elementary School, Mountain Brook Junior High 
School, Crestline Elementary School, and Cherokee Bend Elementary School. 

9 Trails and Sidewalks: A growing network connects the three villages and Jemison Park. 

9 Traffic Islands and Other Locations: 113 locations across the city totaling 5.51 acres. 
Of these locations, 100 are independent of City parks, mostly traffic islands. 

THE MERCER GROUP, INC. 10 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 

- 



Equipment 

The Parks Superintendent provided an inventory of equipment that includes: 

P 9 vehicles (see below) 

9 27 miscellaneous pieces of equipment (e.g., mowers, traiIers, tractors, Bobcats) and small 
engine items (e.g., weed whackers, blowers, generators) 

P 2 1 shop tools 

Major equipment items assigned to crews are listed below: 

P Administration (1): 2004 Dodge Durango 

P Complex Crew (1): 20 1 1 Ford F- 150 

> Odd Jobs Crew (1): 2009 Ford F-350 

P Turf Crew (3): 2008 Ford F-150 (Supervisor), 2012 Ford F-350 (2) 

> Route Crew (1): 2013 Ford F-350 

P Parks Crew (1): 2009 Ford F-350 

P Shared Items (1): 1999 Ford F-350 (fuel truck) 

It appears that most mainline vehicles and equipment are relatively new and replaced, for the 
most part, at the end of an items useful life. 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 11 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



C. SWOT ASSESSMENT 

Introduction 

The SWOT Assessment is the result of interviews involving almost 50 people with a stake in the 
services of the Department of Parks & Recreation, including the liaison from the City Council, 
City Manager, Finance Director, City Planner, various stakeholders, strategic partners, and 
department supervisors and employees. 

The Assessment is a compilation of the perspectives of these people on four topics: 

B Strengths: What the Department shouId be proud of, does welI, and is noted for. 
Services and accomplishments that City officials, stakeholders, and citizens appreciate. 

9 Weaknesses: Situations, services, methods, and policies needing improvement, fine- 
tuning, or overhaul. Resource needs beyond the current budget. 

P Opportunities: Service delivery ideas, new or expanded services, new ideas and 
approaches, possible collaborative opportunities, etc. 

P Threats: Events or situations that would cause the "wheels to fa11 off." Typically, many 
of these threats are the result of state and national factors. 

For each topic, major themes are identified when discussed in a significant number of the 
interviews. Each theme is presented based on a compilation of the insights of all parties 
interviewed. 

Note that these findings are the percentions of the parties interviewed and may not 
accurately reflect the current situation or represent a consensus of persons interviewed. In 
some cases information is out-of-date or incorrect and in others the comments accurately reflects 
the current situation. So, care must be taken not to overreact to any perceived positives or 
negatives in the SWOT Assessment. 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 12 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



Exhibit 2 in Chapter V provides a detailed summary of comments by persons interviewed and 
completing questionnaires, which are broken down into four categories: 

P Overall Assessment (compiling all interview categories), 
> City officials and staff, 
> External stakeholders, and 
P Department employees. 

From this detailed assessment, Mercer gleaned the following key findings for the Department 
of Parks & Recreation. 

Maior Current Strengths 

B Strong, well-coordinated Park & Recreation Board 
I+ New Park Superintendent ("lots of weaknesses have been fixed" with her coming, 

including organization plan, staffing, and employee attitudes) 
> Skills, experience, and teamwork of departmental staff 
9 Quality and condition of parks and athletic fields ("incredible," "outstanding") 
P Paths and Sidewalks PIan nearly implemented 
P SchooIs-Parks/City and Associations-Parksfcity relationships 

Maior Current Weaknesses 

B Need a long-term vision and plan for parks and recreation (Comprehensive Parks & 
Recreation Plan and associated Parks Department Functional Business Plan) 

P Need more playing fields, particularly big fields for practices 
P Impact of traveling teams on opportunities for recreational-level sports 
P More internal structure, systems, and controls (e.g., enforced tardiness policy) 
> Is the department on cruise control? 

Major Future O~portunities and Challenzes 

> Cahaba River Park 
> Community Center with gyms (but lack of support in the past) 
> Keeping up with participation in emerging and growing sports, like lacrosse recently 
P Provide adequate opportunities for participation at the recreation level for older kids 

Maior Threats 

9 National recession affecting the local economy and city revenues 
I+ Cuts in staffing or equipment replacement funding 
P Hiring employees with the wrong attitude 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 13 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



D. 2014 CITIZEN SURVEY 

In 2014 the City of Mountain Brook contracted with the ETC Institute to conduct a citizen 
survey on satisfaction and needs. Parks and Recreation findings are: 

> 90% were very satisfied o r  satisfied with the quality of City parks and recreation 
programs and faciIities compared to 71% in 52 other communities, with a range of 
50% to 95% in all communities. 

> 27% indicated parks and recreation programs and facilities as their lSt, 2"" or  3'" 
choice in requiring emphasis on the next two years. 

P 85% were very satisfied or  satisfied with Mountain Brook as a place to play and for 
leisure, which is related to, but a bit different, than services of the P&R Department. 

> Satisfaction with varying aspects of Parks and Recreation were high. The total very 
satisfied and satisfied ratings for these aspects and other community scores are: 

Maintenance of City parks (94% and 77%) 
Youth Programs through MB Athletics (88% and 69%) 
Ease of registering for programs (84% and 62%) 
Maintenance of sidewalks and walking trails (84% and 56%) 
Outdoor athletic fields (82% and 69%) 
Youth Programs through MB Soccer (82% and 69%) 
Number of waIking trails (80%) 
Number of City parks (77% and 71%) 
Fees charged for recreational programs (76%) 

> Sewices requiring the most emphasis over the next two years as rated lS', 2nd, or  3rd 
priorities are: 

Maintenance of sidewalks and walking trails (43%) 
Maintenance of city parks (35%) 
Number of walking trails (35%) 
Number of City parks (25%) 
Outdoor athletic fields (23%) 
Youth Programs through MB Athletics (1 8%) 
Fees charged for recreational programs (9%) 
Youth Programs through MB Soccer (5%) 
Ease of registering for programs (4%) 

P On a scale of 1 (Highest) to 5 (Lowest), expansion of trails and sidewalks (2.84) are  
second only to road resurfacing and new parks and fields (3.3) are fourth. 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 14 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



E. COMPAIRATIVE ANALYSIS 

Overview of the Comparative Analvsis 

In the comparative analysis (see Table 3 that follows) we provide high-level data and statistical 
analyses of Mountain Brook and four other cities suggested by the City Manager: 

9 Homewood, Alabama 
9 Birmingham, Michigan 
P Hinsdale, Illinois 
> Lake Forest, Illinois 

Data elements collected include: 

P Population as of 20 10 
P Size in square miles 
P Total number of parks 
> Total parks acreage 
> Total number of ball fields and gyms 
P Most recent budget for Parks Maintenance (but not Recreation) 

Analyses conducted include: 

> Acres per 1000-population 
> Parks per 1000-population 
P Ball fields per 1000-population 
P Parks Maintenance cost per capita 

For years the National Recreation and Parks Association (NRPA) recommended 10 acres of 
parkland per 1000 residents and prior to this standard MRPA 1983 recommended 6.25 to 10.5 
acres of developed open space per 1000 residents. As of 201 1, however, these standards are in 
the process of changing to a more data-driven measure. Standards that may apply to Mountain 
Brook are: 

P Total Parks Acreage 127 to 214 acres using the 1983 standard (MB = 1 10 acres) 

> BasebalVSoftball Fields: 1 of each per 5,000 residents = 8 fields (MB = 6) 

> Soccer Fields: 1 per 10,000 residents = 2 fields (MB = 3 + Rathmell + Schools) 

P Swimming Pool: I per 20,000 residents = 1 pool (MB = private pools) 

9 Tennis Courts: 2 per 2,000 residents = I0 (MB = 7 + Schools + Private) 

P Trails: 1 per community or region (MB = Several trails, but not filly connected) 

TWE MERCER GROUP. TNC. 15 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



Table 3 
High liglzts of the Convarative Analysis 

(1) Acreage excludes golf courses 
(2) Parks Budget for Homewood is estimated based on staffing and operating expenses and for 

Lake Forest is estimated based on staffing 
(3) NRPA Standard for acres per 1000-residents (10 in the past) is changing to a national survey- 

based number 

DESCRIPTOR 

Baseline Data: 
20 10 Population 

Area (Sq. Miles) 

Parks Board 

# of Parks 

Parks Acres (I) 

Miles of Trails 

Ball Fields 

Special 
Facilities 

Parks Budget (2) 

Parks Staff 
Parks Analysis: 
Park Acres per 
1000-residents: 

Trails Miles per 
1000-residents: 

Ball Fields per 
1000-residents 
Budget 
Analvsis: 
Parks Only Cost 
per Resident: 

Parks Staff per 
1 000-residents: 

THE MERCER GROUP. TNC. 16 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 

MTN 
BROOK 

20,4 13 

12.20 

Yes 

8 

1 10 
+Islands 

Get 

15 

15 
lrondale 
Rathmell 

$ 1, I 10,490 

16 

5.39 

Get 

.73 

$54.40 

.78 

Four City 
Average 

20,389 

8.75 

75% Yes 

15 

136 
+Islands 
+More 

12 

10 

See Cities 

$1,547,220 

12 

6.96 

-60 

.48 

$ 

.56 

Birmingham, 
Michigan 

20,103 

4.80 

No 

22 

128 

2 

10 

~ o l f  (2) 
Racquet Club 
Ice Arena 
Dog Park 
Mini Park (3) 
Lake 

$1,067,6 10 

11 (No GoIf) 

6.37 

.I0 

.SO 

$53.1 1 

.55 

Hinsdale, 
Illinois 

16,816 

4.64 

Yes 

18 

130 
+Islands 

None 

6 

Platform 
Tennis 
Lodge 
Pool 
Skate Park 
Ice Skating 

$],I2 1,269 

5 

7.73 

N/A 

.36 

$66.68 

.30 

Homewood, 
Alabama 

25,262 

8.30 

Yes 

8 

86.5 
+ROW 
+Facilities 

3 

10 

Soccer Park 

$1,500,000 

2 1 

3.42 

-11 

.40 

$59.38 

.83 

Lake 
Forest, 
Illinois 

19,375 

17.24 

Yes 

12 

200+ 
+Cemetery 
+Forestry 

3 1 

13 

Lake 
Beach 
Ponds 
Rec. Ctr. 
Golf 
Sr. Ctr. 

$2,500,000 

Get 

10.32 

1.6 

.67 

$1 29.03 

Get 



Findinps (Con tin ued) 

The Comparative Analysis data in Table 3 yields the following insights on Mountain Brook 
parks and recreation services and facilities, Mercer was required to do a bit of 
extrapolation to break out Parks Only costs and staff from total Parks and Recreation 
figures in some communities: 

P Parks Board: Three of four comparative communities have advisory Parks and 
Recreation Boards. 

P Parks Acreage: Except for Lake Forest as a bit of an outlier in total land area parks 
acreage, each community has a relatively similar number of parks and parks acreage. 

P Maintenance Responsibilities: Increase acreage for islands and rights-of-way, as well as 
the cemetery, forestry, and facilities in some communities. 

b Trails: Only Hinsdale, the smallest community in land area lacks internal trails. But. 
Illinois communities ofien benefit from trails in regional forest preserves. 

P Ball Fields: Baseball, softball, and soccer fields are fairly similar across the 
communities. 

P Special Facilities: Other communities tend to have a significant number of special 
facilities not found in Mountain Brook or provided by private organizations. These 
include a Recreation Center, Senior Center, Dog Park, and lakeheach facility. 

P Parks Maintenance Budget: Breaking out parks only expenses from parks AND 
recreation budgets is difficult in Homewood and Lake Forest. Excluding these two 
communities, the budgets for Mountain Brook, Hinsdale, and Birmingham are very 
similar. 

P Parks Maintenance Staff: Staffing levels also are a11 over the map and reflect the 
specific composition of the parks maintenance and associated functions in each 
community parks and recreation department. How Hinsdale gets by with five parks 
maintenance positions is a bit of a mystery, likely solved by parks' inclusion in a public 
works type department where staff is cross-utilized. 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 17 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



F. EMPLOYEE SURVEYS 

Overview of the Siirvevs 

To gather employee data and perceptions, we applied five Mercer Group surveys; the 
Management Philosophy Profile (MPP) (see later in the report); and an 
OrganizationaYOperational Questionnaire (see later in the report). 

The five employee surveys are: 

B Values 
P Organizational Climate 
> GRIPES or  Management Practices 
B Resources 
9 Personnel Practices 

The detailed results of the employee surveys issued to Parks employees are provided in Exhibit 
3 and the master survey documents are provided as Exhibits 4 (surveys), 5 (questionnaire), and 
6 (MPP), all in Chapter V. 

In total, we processed fourteen completed responses from Parks & Recreation employees, which 
is close to a 100% response rate. The data in the survey reports are reported by the following 
three Employee Types: 

B All All Parks Employees 
P 001 Supervisors (6) 
P 002 Non-Supervisors (8) 

Because of the small number of employees in Parks, we do not report scores by function or crew, 
which only have 2-3 employees compared to Mercer's minimum reporting standard of six people in 
an Organizationd Category. 

Mercer's Minimum and High Performance Standards, overall scores for Parks, and overall 
scores for recent Mercer clients, are shown on Table 3 that follows for GRIPES, Resources, 
Personnel Practices, and the OCS. Note we include citywide and Parks scores for Mountain 
Brook from our 2003 study of city departments for comparison. 

Overall, the surveys resulted in scores relatively comparable to the 2003 Parks surveys (but 
3 of 4 scores are slightly higher) and the best results for other Mercer clients nationally and 
regionally (Colorado City). 

However, lower scores for individual factors (Iike Stafing) may indicate issues and challenges 
to address as noted in the following pages and chapters of the report. 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 18 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



Table 4 
Emplayee Survey Scores for Mountain Brook & Recent Mercer CIients 

THE MERCER GROUP. MC. 19 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 

CLIENT 

Mercer Standard 
High Performance 
Minimum 
Problematic 

GRIPES 

4.0=Good 
3.0=Adequate 
Under 2.5 

RESOURCES 

4.0=Good 
3.0=Adequate 
Under 2.5 

67.76% Agree 
18.67% Undecided 
13.57% Disagree 

56.82% Agree 
20.30% Undecided 
22.88% Disagree 

58.55% Agree 
15.66% Undecided 
25.78% Disagree 

Mtn. Brook Parks 
2013-2014 
2 I ,000-population 
Suburban 
Higher income 
Mtn. Brook Parks 
2003 
2 1,000-population 
Suburban 
Higher Income 
Mtn Brook CITY 
2003 
2 I ,000-population 
Suburban 
Higher Income 

PERSONNEL 
PRACTICES 

4.0=Good 
3.0=Adequate 
Under 2.5 

3.12 
80.0% 

3.47 
82.0% 

2.84 
76% 

Colorado Citv 
12,000-population 
Suburban 
Higher Income 
Massachusetts 
Town - 
3 0,000-population 
Suburban 
Mixed Income 
Unionized 
Texas City 
53,000-population 
Urban 
Mixed income 
Comnarables 
Average 

ORGANIZATIONAL 
CLIMATE SURVEY 

60% Agree/C30% Disagree 
50% Agree/<4O% Disagree 
6 0 %  Agree/40% Disagree 

3.75 

3.64 

3.36 

3-46 
83% 

2.36 
60% 

Not Used 

2.91 
71.5% 

3.42 

3.03 

2.98 

3.48 

2.44 

3.07 

3.00 

3.73 

2.1 8 

2.73 

2.88 

72.92% Agree 
1 I .25% Undecided 
15.83% Disagree 

39.08% Agree 
15.33% Undecided 
45.59% Disagree 

5 1.67% Agree 
15.66% Undecided 
32.66% Disagree 
54.54% Agree 
14.42% Undecided 
31.05% Disagree 



Results of the Surveys 

Values Survev 

This survey asked Parks employees five Yes-No questions about the status and application of 
organizational values: 

9 Values Statement: 50% of Parks employees indicated a formal values statement is in 
place. 

9 Communication of the Statement: Only 36% of Parks employees indicated that vaIues 
are communicated or posted. 

> Employee Input: Only 14% of Parks employees, likely supervisors, indicated that values 
are developed with employee input. Values seem to have been created by the prior 
Superintendent. 

9 Relationship to City Values: 57% of Parks employees indicated that department values 
are related to City values, which is surprising based on scores for the first three questions. 

9 Values Lived Day-to-Day: Although not a11 Parks employees could identify a formal set 
of values, 77% indicated a values system is lived out day-to-day. 

Based on the use of the Values Survey in other clients, Mercer likes to see that Yes scores 
are twice the No scores. Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation did not meet this standard. 

The survey also asked employees to list vaIues in place in the department, with a list of sample 
values provided fkom other Mercer clients. The values most frequently identified across the 
department are Iisted below: 

P Community 
> Stewardship 
P Integrity 
9 Respect 
> Safety 
P Keeps Parks Clean 

THE MERCER GROUP, INC. 20 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



Organizational Climate Survev (OCS) 

The OCS measures the state of the organization's culture, internal relationships, and 
employee attitudes toward work based on sixty indicators or statements grouped into twelve sub- 
scales. 

This survey is scored on a percentage for Strongly Agree + Agree, Undecided, and Strongly 
Disagree + Disagree choices. Based on the application of the OCS in over 100 other clients, we 
have developed the following Mercer Standards (or Goals): 

P High Performance: Agree score of at least 60% with a Disagree score under 30% 

> Minimum: Agree score of at least 50% with a Disagree score under 40% 

> Problematic Scores: Agree scores beIow 50% and Disagree scores at or above 40% 

The twelve factors (alkh sub-scales) rated by employees are: 

B Career Opportunities 
> Compensation and Benefits 
> Employee Involvement 
P Information and Communications 
P Management Competence 
9 Productivity and Service 
> Quality Emphasis 
> Receptivity to Change 
P Understanding of Organizational Goals 
> Work Group Problem Solving (among managers and supervisors) 
P Work Group Coordination and Cooperation (among employees) 
9 Working Conditions 

The department's overall average of 67.76% Agree, 18.67% Undecided, and 13.57% 
Disagree meets our High Performance Standard. Only the Compensation and Benefits 
(58.57%) subscale has an overall score below 60% Agree. Still, the overall score is very 
positive, except for non-supervisors scores on two subscales. 

Supervisors (74.17% Agree) are about 18% overall more positive than Non-Supervisors 
(56.09%), meaning Agree scores are higher and Disagree scores are lower for supervisors. 
Normally we see a spread closer to 10% than 20%, so Parks Supervisors are much more positive 
than non-supervising employees. 

Surprisingly (because of the new facility and Superintendent), non-supervisors rate Working 
Conditions (45% Agree) and Receptivity to Change (50% Agree) somewhat low. 

THE MERCER GROUP, INC. 2 1 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



GRIPES Survey 

This survey measures the adequacy of a variety of management practices, such as Growth 
(personal development and training, Respect and recognition, Information, Potential tapped, 
Empowerment, and Support.. .hence the acronym GRIPES. - 

Most factors are scored on a five-point scale with l=Poor, 2=Fair, 3=Average/AdequateY 
+Good, and S=ExceIlent, with Potential scored as a percentage. Based on the survey's 
appIication in over 50 other clients, Mercer's Standards (or Goals) for this survey are: 

P High Performance: $.O=Good or 70% Potential 

> Minimum: 3.0=Adequate or 60% Potential 

Problematic: Approaching (Under 2.5) or under 2.0=Fair and under 60% Potential 

The department's overall GRIPES score is a solid 3.12, which exceeds our Minimum 
Standard. Potential is a robust 80%, which meets our High Performance Standard. 

A few factors, however, had lower scores, either for the department as a whole or for a division 
or section: 

P Training Hours: Both Supervisors (2.6) and Non-Supervisors (2.0) rate this factor low. 
The adequacy of training hours is a recurring issue in studies of maintenance-oriented 
organizations. 

> Respect by Elected Officials: Both Supervisors (2.67) and Non-Supervisors (2.0) rate 
this factor low. This score often is Iow for agencies located away from City Hall because 
these employees seldom have face-to-face interaction with public officials. 

9 Rewards: Non-Supervisors (1.86) rated this factor very low, which corresponds to a 
somewhat low Compensation & Benefits score on the OCS. 

> Information: Non-Supervisors rated these two factors under 2,5=Problematic. Perhaps 
this is a hold-over score from the prior administration? 

P Support: Non-Supervisors rate support from Support Services department and Elected 
officials at or only sIightly above 2.0=Poor. Again, this may be because Non-Supervisors 
have limited contact with City Hal1 officials and staff, so don't see the positive things that 
come from decisions of the Mayor and City Council and the Parks Board, and the work 
of City staff. 

THE MJIRCER GROUP. INC. 22 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



Resources Survev 

This survey measures the adequacy of a variety of resources provided through the budget. 
This survey is scored on a scale of 1 (Poor), 2 (Fair), 3 (Adequate), 4 (Good), and 5 (Excellent). 
Based on the application of the Resources Survey in over 50 other clients, we have developed the 
following Mercer Standards (or Goals): 

> High Performance: 4.0=Good 

B Minimum: 3,0=Average/Adequate 

P Problematic: Approaching (under 2.5) or below 2.0 (Fair) 

The nine factors rated by employees are: 

B Stafing 
9 Facility 
P Vehicles 
B Tools 
B Gear 
B Office Equipment 
P Computers 
P MateriaIs 
9 Other Resources (such as training funds and contracts) 

The Department's overall score is 3.75, is very close to our High Performance Standard. 
Only two scores for Non-Supervisors were below 3.0, our minimum standard: 

P Staffing (2.63): The surveys were administered before the City approved the 16Ih 
position so this score might be higher if the surveys were administered today. 

B Gear (2.88): This score is close to our Minimum Standard. Per interviews, this score 
may be more reflective of complaints about sharing a back hoe with Public Works and 
the condition or number of some ground maintenance equipment than personal gear. 

THE MERCER GROUP. TNC. 23 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



Personnel Practices 

This survey measures the effectiveness of personneI administration/human resource 
management functions and activities. 

This survey also is scored on a scale of l=Poor, t=Fair, 3=Average/Adequate, 4=Good, and 
S=Excellent Note that scores on this survey tend to be !4 to 1 point lower than scores on the 
Resources Survey. Based on the application of the Personnel Administration Survey in over 50 
other clients, Mercer has developed the following standardstgoals: 

P High Performance: $.O=Good 

P Minimum: 3.0=Average/Adequate 

P Problematic: Approaching (under 2.5) or below 2.0 (Fair) 

The ten factors rated by employees are: 

> Hiring Process 
9 Career Ladders 
> Training 
> Grievances (by employees) 
> Discipline (by the city) 
9 Performance Evaluations 
9 Pay 
> Benefits 
> Labor Relations 
9 Morale 

The department's overall score (3.42) meets our Minimum Standard. Unlike other clients, 
the Personnel Practices score is close to the Resources score (often they ate .5 apart with 
Resources higher). 

Again, Non-Supervisors rate some factors lower than 3.0, our minimum standard. Training, 
Grievances, and Discipline (City/department actions) are only slight low at 2.88. Two factors, 
however, are moving toward 2.S=Problematic: 

9 Performance Evaluations (2.67): The overaIl score is slightly below our Minimum 
Standard. Lower scores on this factor are common in a smaller organization. 

P Pay (2.71): This score connects to lower scores on Compensation & Benefits in the OCS 
and Rewards in GRIPES. 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 24 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (61412014) 



1. Issues and Opportunities from the Surveys: The following key issues need to 
be reviewed and improved by the City andfor the Parks Department. 

Organizational Values: The Parks Superintendent should meet with Non- 
Supervisors to review the reasons for lower scores on the Organizational Values 
questions. With new leadership, now is a good time to revisit these foundational 
cultural elements. 

Organizational Climate: The Parks Superintendent, and in some cases the City, 
aIso should review the reasons for lower Non-Supervisor scores on Compensation 
& Benefits, Working Conditions, and Receptivity to Change, as well as 
acceptable, but surprising for a department with high citizen survey marks, for 
lower scores on Quality Emphasis and Productivity & Customer Service. These 
last two subscales are KEY service delivery measures and should be at least at the 
60% Agree level and moving toward 70% Agree. 

GRIPES/Management Practices: The Parks Superintendent also should review 
the reasons for lower scores for Training Hours, Respect by Elected Officials, 
Rewards, Information (by Non-Supervisors), and Support. 

Resources: Although most Resources scores are excellent, the Parks 
Superintendent should review lower score for Stafing to see if it is a hold-over 
from before the City approved the 16' position. 

Personnel Practices: The Parks Superintendent and the City's HR Director 
should review the lower scores for Pay and Performance Evaluations. As with 
DPW, we think new management in Parks will results in higher scores on city and 
department-controlled factors. 

2. Future Use of the Surveys: We recommend that our clients repeat the Employee 
Surveys about 24 months after our report is delivered to measure progress in making 
improvements and changes identified in the surveys. For example, now would be a good 
time to repeat the employee surveys in the Public Works Department. 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 2 5 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



G. ORGANIZATION/OPERATIONS QUESTIONNAIRE 

Overview 

Exhibit 5 in Chapter V of the report provides a Master Copy of the Organization and 
Operations Questionnaire, which was completed by fourteen Parks employees. 

These questionnaires were the basis for individual interviews with Parks employees. Issues, 
ideas, and chaIlenges Erom the questionnaires and interviews were compiled and addressed in 
various sections and chapters of the report as described below. 

> Employee Job History, Work Goals, and Special Skills: This information provides 
background information on employees, the organization plan, stafling plan, and 
operational practices of the department. This information is used ONLY in aggregate or 
to identi@ overriding themes and is NOT used to critique individual employees. 

> Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities, and Threats: This information supports the 
SWOT Assessment earlier in this chapter. 

> Department Vision, Mission, Goals, and Objectives: This information supports 
Strategic Direction in Chapter 111. 

> Employee Job Description, Job Duty Analysis, Backlog, and Transfers: This 
information supports the Organization and Stfling Analysis in Chapter I11 

P Operations Improvements: This information supports the Operations Management 
section of Chapter 111. 

Kev Findings 
P Employee Participation: Employees were very open in completing the questionnaire 

and in providing ideas and suggestions in each part of the questionnaire. Similarly, they 
were willing to answer the consultant's questions and explain what they wrote in the 
questionnaire during interviews. 

P Strategic Direction: Only a few ernpIoyees have a clear understanding of the 
department's long-term Vision. Most say Parks should continue doing what it has been 
done for a long time or wait until the Superintendent decides. 

Similar1 y, the Mission Statement is unclear1 y or only partly understood by employees. 
Most in a general way said it should be "to serve the citizens and keep parks looking 
good." Employee understanding of strategic direction gets murkier as the topics get more 
specific (Goals, Objectives, and Performance Measures). 

THE MERCER GROUP, INC. 26 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



Special Skills: Employees identified a number of special skills and experience that might 
be of use to the department and the City. These include: 

Flowers 
Landscaping 
WeIding 
Small engine mechanic 
Audio engineer 
Small business operation 
Concrete work 
Cash processing 
Ball field set-up (2) 
Floor maintenance 

P Job Duty Analysis: Information in the questionnaires show a relatively well-organized 
and cohesive job structure with clearly assigned supervisors, relatively current job 
descriptions (all but one 75% or 100% accurate), a clear list of assigned duties, very 
limited backlog of work, and few suggestions to transfers of job duties to or from another 
employee. 

P Operations Management: Only % of the employees offered operational suggestions in 
this part of the questionnaire. 

3. Issues and Opportunities from the Questionnaires: The following key issues 
need to be reviewed by the City and Parks. Specific recommendations for these issues 
are provided in other parts of the report as noted in parentheses. 

Rework the department's strategic direction, including vision, goaIs, objectives 
and performance measures (See Chapter 111, Strategic Direction) 
Better communicate the department's mission statement as listed on the web site 
(also see Chapter 111, Strategic Direction) 
Assess if special skills identified on the questiorlnaire have value to the 
department or the City (see Chapter 111, Organization and Staffing) 
Assess the vaIue of operational suggestions (see Chapter 111, Operations 
Management) 

4. Future Use of the Questionnaires: Normally, the Organizational and Operations 
Questionnaire is only used during a management study and not repeated in 24 months 
Iike the Employee Surveys. The City and department, however, are welcome to re-apply 
this survey as needed or beneficial in the hture. 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 27 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



H. MANAGEMENT PHILOSOPHY PROFILE 

Overview 

The Management Philosophy Profile (MPP) was distributed to six supervisory personnel, 
including the Superintendent, Ofice Manager, and four Labor Supervisors. A master copy of 
the MPP is provided as Exhibit 6 in Chapter V of the report. 

We asked these managers to rate themselves on twelve indicators of management 
philosophy, which are clustered into three major categories, and at two points in time (Today 
and a fbture Target). Each indicator allows the manager to select from a five-step range of 
scoring choices between two extremes (one identified as1 and the other as 5 with grades 2, 
3, and 4 in between): 

> Personality: 

Type (Introvert to Extrovert) 
Risk-Taking (None to Lots) 
Initiative (Very Reactive to Very Proactive) 
Solutions (Mostly Feelings to Mostly Analysis) 

People (Very Internal to Very External) 
Work (Mostly Details to Mostly Macro) 
Resources (Mostly Things to Mostly People) 
Time (A11 in the Past to The Past to a Y e w )  

> Relationships: 

Status (Mostly a Boss to Mostly Empowering) 
Delegation (Very Central to Mostly Broadly Delegated) 
Decision (Mostly Closed to Mostly Open) 
Communications (Very FormaI to Very Informal) 

Basically, the lower the score the closer one is to the first of the two Management Philosophy 
extremes and the higher the score the closer one is to the second extreme. So, someone scoring 1 
or 2 on Personality-Type would be very or somewhat Introverted and someone scoring 4 or 5 
would be somewhat or very Extroverted. 

Mercer reviewed each supervisor9s responses proposed an optimal score for each of the 
twelve criteria. These scores willed shared only with each supervisor and aggregated for the 
management team as a whole in the report. 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 28 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 

- - - - - - 



The results of the MPP are compiled on Table 4 that follows. At the bottom of Table 4, we 
provide three indexes that are explained below: 

P Mercer Standard Compliance Index: Measures the degree to which the Today and 
Target scores of managers complies with Mercer's Suggested Score (or Goal) for their 
level of position. 

High Compliance: Managers are within .5 of the Mercer Standard on 10 to 12 of 
the twelve factors. Above Exuectation. 

Moderate Complhnce: Managers are within .5 of the Mercer Standard on 7 to 9 
of the twelve factors. At Exuectation. 

Low Compliance: Managers are within .5 of the Mercer Standard on fewer than 
7 of the twelve factors. Below Expectation and Needs Improvement. 

P Group Transition Index: Measures the amount of change that managers say they need 
to make in order to transition from their Today to their Target scores. Criteria measured 
include the number of managers with changes, numbers of factors with changes, the range 
of changes (+/-), and the average change (+/-). 

Low Transition: A small number of Managers in the group indicate only a small 
number (1-2) of factors to be changed and/or a high numerical (>2 points) change 
for only a few factors. Above Exuectation. 

Moderate Transition: More Managers in the group indicate a moderate number 
(3-4) of factors to be changed andfor high numerical (>2 points) change for more 
factors. At Exaectation. 

High Transition: A large number of Managers in the group indicate a high 
number (>5) of factors to be changed andfor a high numerical change (>2 points) 
for several factors. Below Expectation and Needs Imurovement. 

P Group Cohesiveness Index: Measures the cohesiveness of the group's Management 
Philosophy by the number and percentage of indicators having more than a 1-point 
difference among the scores of the group of managers. 

High Cohesiveness: Most managers are close to each other in their ratings of 
individual factors with only a few factor (1-3) scores varying more than I-point up 
or down. Above Exuectation. 

Moderate Cohesiveness: Many managers are close to each other in their ratings 
of individual factors with some (4-6) scores varying more than I-point up or 
down. At Expectation. 

Low Cohesiveness: Only some managers are close to each other in their rating of 
individual factors with several (7-12) scores varying more than 1-point up or 
down. Below Expectation and Needs Improvement. 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 29 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (61412014) 



Table 5 
Results of the Management Plsilosopl?y Profile for Parks 

TWE MERCER GROUP. INC. 30 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 

MERCER 

3.5 to 4.0 
3.0 to 3.5 
3.5 to 4.0 
3.5 to 4.0 

3.0 to 3.5 
3.0 to 3.5 
3.0 to 3.5 
4.0 to 4.5 . 

3.5 to 4.0 
3.5 to 4.0 
3.5 to 4.0 
3.5 to 4.0 

Below 
Exnectation 
Under 7 meet 
Mercer Goal 

Below - 
Exnectation 
75% managers 
5+ factors 
-I5 or +15 
+/-9.5 average 

- Below 
Exnectation 
7-1 2 factors 
vary by > 1 
point 

Category and 
Indicator 
Personalitv 
Type 
Risk-taking 
Initiative 
Solutions 
Work Focus 
People 
Work 
Resources 
Time 
Relationships 
Status 
Delegation 
Decisions 
Communications 
MERCER 
STANDARD 
COMPLIANCE 
INDEX 

Parks Score- 
Corn pliance: 

GROUP 
TRANTI'ION 
INDEX 

Parks Score- 
Transition: 

GROUP 
COHESIVENESS 
INDEX 

Parks Score- 
Cohesiveness: 

Scoring is a five-step scale 
with low to high choices 

1 =introvert to 5=extrovert 
I=low to 5=high 
I =reactive to 5-proactive 
I =feelings to 5=analysis 

I =internal to 5=external 
l=details to 5=macro 
l=things to S=people 
l=past to 5=future 

I=boss to 5=empowering 
I =central to S=decentralized 
I =closed to 5=open process 
I=formal to 5-informal 
Measures the number of 
factors on which the group's 
Future score is within .5- 
points of the Mercer Standard 

Positive move from Needs 
Improvement to Good 
Measures the amount of 
change needed to move from 
the Today to the Target by the 
number of managers with 
changes, number of factors 
changing, range of change, 
and average change (+/-) 
Overcorrected in moving 
from Today to Target 
Measures the cohesiveness of 
the group's Management 
Philosophy by the number 
and percentage of indicators 
having more than a I-point 
difference among the Target 
scores of the managers 
Today to Target does not 
bring managers together 

TODAY 

3.8 
2.3 
3.5 
2.8 

3 .O 
2.8 
3.3 
3.8 

4.0 
3.0 
3.0 
3.5 

Above 
Exnectation 
10-1 2 meet 
Mercer Goal 

6 = Below 

Above 
Exneetation 
25% managers 
1-2 factors 
-5 to 45 
+/-3.5 average 

----- 
50% = 
At or Near 
Above 
Expectation 
1-3 factors 
vary by > 1 
point 

11 of 12 = 
Below 

TARGET 

4.2 
3.2 
4.3 
3.5 

3.2 
3.3 
3.5 
4.3 

3.8 
3.3 
3.5 
4.0 

At or Near 
Expectation 
7 to 9 meet 
Mercer Goal 

12 = Good 

At or Near 
Expectation 
50% managers 
3-4 factors 
-10 or+10 
+/-6.5 average 

54% = 
At or Near 
At or Near 
Exnectation 
4-6 factors 
vary by > 1 
point 

11 of 12 = 
Below 



5. Management Philosophy: Clearly it's a brand new ballgame under the new 
Parks Superintendent, just like in Public Works in 2011. Employees in Parks 
comment on the positive changes in communication levels, tone, and professionalism with 
the new Superintendent. 

Although, the overall TargetIFuture scores are in high compliance with Mercer Goals, the 
need for some improvement in the department's overall management philosophy are 
evident in two indexes: 

Transition: The Parks Superintendent should ensure the department revisits the 
management phiIosophy as Targefluture scores seem to overcompensate from 
Today scores. Rethink individual Target scores based on Mercer goals and 
management team discussion. 

Cohesiveness: The Parks Superintendent should work to make the management 
team more cohesive internally. Again, use Mercer goal to reconsider individual 
Target scores and to discuss differences among individual managers. Enhanced 
cohesiveness is most important between the Superintendent and the Labor 
Supervisors. 

Mercer wilI review these issues with the Superintendent, supervisors, and staff during our 
review of the DraR Report and lead them through an exercise or two to improve 
department and individual management philosophies to enhance cohesion. 

6. Future Use of the MPP: We recommend that our clients repeat the Management 
Philosophy Profile about 24 months afier our report is delivered to measure progress in 
making improvements and changes identified in the surveys. 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 31 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



This chapter of the report presents findings, analyses, and recommendations related to the six 
major categories in our 50 Management Issues for Organizational Improvement (Governance, 
Strategic Direction, Service Delivery Structure, Organization and Staffing, Operations 
Management, and Resource Management). 

A. GOVERNANCE 

I . )  Leaal Structure 

The Parks & Recreation Board (Parks Board or the Board) is authorized and empowered under 
Section 11-86 of the Alabama Code and under Section 38 of the City Code of Ordinances. 
Language used in the state and city codes is very similar. In summary, these State and City 
code sections indicate: 

P The board is called the "Recreation Board" and has five to nine members (the City 
selected nine), who are appointed by the City Council. 

The board is charged with adopting rules and regulation to direct, supervise, and promote 
recreation programs and parks facilities, 

> The board, with the approval of the city council, may appoint a municipal director of 
recreation as its executive officer, as well as employ staff. 

B Employee salaries are to be fixed by the City Council (or in Mountain Brook by the 
processes of the Jefferson County Personnel Board). 

In practice, the Board is called the Parks Board and its role is advisory to the Mayor and City 
Council. The Parks Board acknowledges this role with a rare exception. 

Parks & Recreation is a department of City government and budgeted positions are employees of 
the City, not the Board. Salaries are set by the Jefferson County Personnel Board under different 
statutes and codes. 

Recommendations 

7. Legal Structure: No changes recommended. 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 32 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



2.) Parks and Recreation Board 

Mercer attended two board meetings of the Parks Board and interviewed all but one board 
member, as well as the City Council liaison, City Manager, Parks Superintendent, and 
several policy-level stskeholders. We learned: 

> The board is seen and acts as an advisory body to the Mayor, City Council, and City 
Manager. It reviews ideas and makes recommendations on parks and facility needs. For 
example, a memorial bench in Jemison Park. 

The board is composed of high-level, experienced people with a strong commitment to 
recreation and parks services in the City. Members include people who grew up in 
Mountain Brook, have or had kids participating in various athletic programs, coached 
kids, are a member on the Tree Commission, work at a garden shop, work in commercial 
reaI estate, and formerly worked in the Parks Department. 

> The board members say they work well together to deveIop policies, rules, and 
regulations and to identify future needs for the community, A City Council member is 
assigned as a liaison to the board and the City Manager often attends meetings (as he 
does with the Tree Commission). 

P The Board has not created a long-term Vision for park and recreation services in the City 
and, similarly, has not recommended the City conduct (or gotten the City to budget) a 
Parks and Recreation Master Plan through the Planning Department. This plan, like 
transportation and facilities plans, often is a sub-component to a city's long-range 
Comprehensive Plan. 

> The Parks Superintendent, current and prior, do a good job of briefing the board on plans, 
activities, and needs. A written Superintendent's Report is presented at each meeting. 
The MB Athletic Association representative on the board also gives an oral report on 
activities at each meeting. 

Recommendations 

8, Parks and Recreation Board: We encourage the Board to press the City and the 
Parks Department to develop a long-term vision for parks and recreation services in the 
City. In the Strategic Direction section of Chapter 111, we will identify possible long-term 
needs, with a focus on services not currently provided and looming facility shortfalls. 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 33 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



3. Friends of the Mountain Bmok Parks 

Findinps 

Mountain Brook parks and recreation services are supported by several organizations: 

b Friends of Jemison Park: This group is moderately active in supporting maintenance 
and improvements for Jemison park and associated trails. Members tend to live adjacent 
to the park dong Cahaba Road, 

b Sports Associations: These associations raise funds through participation fees to support 
sports programs. In the case of Mountain Brook Soccer and Lacrosse, they have teamed 
as major partners with the City to develop Rathmell Park, which they operate and 
maintain. 

What Mountain Brook lacks is a citywide "Friends of the Parks" group similar to the 
Friends of the Emmet O'Neal Library. In other communities, these "fiends" groups provide 
h d s  and encouragement for: 

P New parks, 
9 Parks improvements and expansions, 
9 Parks maintenance and major updates, 
> Consideration of emerging trends, and 
P Children's scholarship for sports and cultural programs. 

Notwithstanding the lack of a strong citywide "fiends" group, Mountain Brook residents 
histo~.ically have risen up to support needed investments in parks and recreation services, 
including the Crestline Tot Lot, T-ball, Lacrosse, and the new Cahaba River Park. A 
"champion" tends to come up with an idea and sell it to city residents, the Parks Board, and the 
City Council. Once enough h d s  are raised, often with significant private donations, the 
projects is initiated. 

Recommendations 

9. Friends of the Parks: Create a citywide "Friends of the Parks" group or a "Parks 
Foundation" to raise private funds for parks and recreation needs, including 
playinglpractice fieIds and recreation-level sports (not competitive or traveling teams). 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 34 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



B. STRATEGIC DIIRIECTION 

I.) Mercer Model for Strategic PlannM 

Figure 1 on the following page outlines the Mercer Model for Strategic Planning in the 
PubIic Sector based on our experience and on Jim Mercer's 1991 book, Strategic Plannine. for 
Public Managers. Our model includes several key steps and processes: 

> Preparation: Define an Approach to pIanning (Top-Down or Bottom-Up?), 
Commitment and Training, Steering Committee, and PIanning Horizon. 

B Environmental Scanning: Compile Community, City Council, City staff, stakeholder, 
and interest group expectations; prepare a SWOT Analysis; identify Shared Values and 
Guiding Principles, analyze the Organizational Climate; and define Environmental 
Factors affecting operations. 

9 Missions: Define missions at the Governmental (What businesses to be in?), Functional, 
Department, and Programmatic levels. 

P Critical Success Factors: Identify 5 to 7 things that define success. 

P Critical Success Indicators/Gauges: Measure such things as positive changes, improved 
efficiency, reduced turnover, and enhanced citizen satisfaction. 

P Strategies: Decide what to do, risks and rewards, costs and benefits, goals and 
objectives. 

B Internal and Gap Assessments: Define a future state and compare it to the present. 

P Contingency Planning: Provide options and plans to respond to unforeseen occurrences. 

9 Integration of Functional and Tactical Plans: Align departments, divisions, programs, 
grants, and the like to the overal1 community expectations, vision, values, mission, and 
strategies. 

P Evaluation and Feedback: Close the loop so the strategic plan can be updated and 
improved periodically based on the experience of all parties involved. 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 35 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



THE MERCER GROUP 
Local Government Strategic Planning Model 

I Envtonmentol Scanning f 

A key challenge in creating or updating Strategic and Functional Business Plans is the 
extent to which several planning initiatives are in place and are aligned: 

> Vision Statements looking out 10 to 20 years. 

P Statement of Core Values (or Guiding Principles). 

9 Citywide strategies based on Environmental Scanning and the SWOT Assessment. 

P Mission statements (citywide and for departments) 

9 Operational and Tactical plans (for departments, divisions/sections, unitsfcrews, and 
employees), which includes contingency planning. 

9 Financial plans (including annual budgets, long-term capital improvement plans, and 
enterprise plans). 

> Functional, program, andlor process plans (often cross-departmental as for the 
development review process). 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 36 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



2.) Parks & Recreatioa 's Stratepic Direction 

Findinps 

> Strategic Planning Process: The City and the Parks & Recreation Department have 
an informal strategic planning process that is relatively short-term (a year or two) and 
centers on decisions made during preparation of the annual operating and capital budgets. 
A major visionary focus is capita1 needs (new and rehabilitation). 

> Functional Business Plan: The Parks & Recreation Department has developed 
some, but not alI, key elements of a functional business plan. 

Vision: Neither the City nor the department have a formal Vision Statement 
looking out ten to twenty years. Notwithstanding, both seem to fully understand 
the strategic outcomes expected by citizens, elected oficials, and other 
stakeholders. Key dements of that vision are wonderfhl looking parks (passive 
and active) and islands, as well as outstanding recreational opportunities for adults 
and children. The new Parks Superintendent clearly understood these 
expectations when hired and wants to "take parks to a higher level" with more 
"attention to detail." She expressed a goal that city parks and island will look at 
least as good as private residences ("beautification"). 

Values: The City has defined these shared values (afWa guiding principles): 
Integrity, Safety, Education, Community, Stewardship, and Beauty. The Parks 
Department uses these values as well, but has not tailored a Values Statement to 
the organizational requirements of Parks. Values identified in the employee 
surveys for this study for the most part mirror city vaIues, with Respect added: 

4 Integrity 
J Safety 
J Community 
./ Stewardship 
4 Clean Parks (Beauty) 
J Respect 

Mission: Both the City and the department have mission statements, with a 
degree of overlap. 

4 City: "A professional organization committed to Teamwork and 
ExcelIence, which promotes full participation in enhancing the quality of 
life for its residents." 

4 Parks Department: "The Parks & Recreation Department strives to 
improve the well-being of the residents of the city by providing an 
attractive, clean, and safe environment for active and passive recreational 
activities" (from the city's web site). Note the mission focus is 
infrastructure maintenance for which all of Parks' staff is dedicated. 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 37 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



Strategies, Goals, and Objectives: Neither the City nor the department have 
formally-defined strategies, goals, and objectives for accomplishing the mission. 
But, there is a common understanding of what is to be done and how to do it, 
particularly as much of Parks' work is repetitive daily, monthly, or seasonal. 
Again, the budget process provides guidance on what is expected and what is 
needed to meet these expectations. 

Performance Measures: The City and the department do not have formal 
performance measures, but expectations are clearly communication, particularly 
for field and park conditions (turf, mowing, safety, and cleanliness). 

Recommendations 

10.Strategic Planning Process: As the Parks Superintendent institutes more formal 
management practices, she and her management team should review the department's 
vision, values, and mission in an open process that encourages every employee to 
participate. Repeat this process every three to five years as required to meet current and 
future challenges. 

In addition, the department should consider and develop a set of goals, objectives, and 
performance measures (as described below) during that process and in consultation with 
the Mayor, City Council, Park Board, City Manager, Finance Director, and City Planner. 

11.FunctionaI Business Plan: While not getting too complex or bureaucratic, the 
department should expand key elements of a functionaI business plan as noted below, 

a) Vision: As noted above, Parks should develop at least a ten-year vision statement 
that addresses where the department expects to be in 2025. The vision could 
include a discussion ofi 

4 Services to be provided 
J Service delivery structure (in-house vs. contract/collaborative services 
4 Organization and staffing (management and staffing needs) 
J Facility and equipment needs 
4 Other resource needs 

b) Values: We like the current list of City values. From the EmpIoyee Surveys, 
however, we learned that department-IeveI values need to be developed, with 
Respect as a starting point for unique Park-related values, 

c) Mission: The current mission statement seems to suit the department's role, but 
does not include language on the "Recreation" side of the department's and the 
Board's name. Under Service Delivery Structure that follows, Mercer discusses 
ways to incorporate visioning for Recreation into the City's and the department's 
strategic planning process. 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 38 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



d) Strategies, Goals, and Objectives: Each function or crew shouId develop 
targeted strategies, goals, and objectives to support achievement of the mission 
statement. These ideas should be simple and limited to a few key areas of service 
that are the responsibility of each crew. 

Goals and Objectives identified in the Parks questionnaires include: 

J Prepare written Vision and Values Statements for Parks 
J Transition from the former to the current Superintendent 
J Brings parks conditions to a higher standard (so they are as beautiful as 

residential properties) 
J Upgrade ball field conditions 
J Open the Cahaba River Parks 
J Purchase or upgrade a few equipment items (tractor) 
J Solve problems and work together better 
J Cross-train and rotate employees 
4 Staff up to filly meet assigned responsibilities 
J Be safe 
J Create a great working environment 
J Improve communications 
J Create monetary incentives for high performance 

Fund all proposed projects in full 

e) Performance Measures: Each fbnction or crew should develop 2 or 3 
performance measures for ongoing and project work that incIudes three elements 
for each measure: 

J Output (e.g., how many units of service did we deliver?) 
J Outcome (e.g., how did our work improve city life?) 
4 Cost (e.g., what did a unit of service cost?) 

Exhibit 7 in Chapter V provides some examples of common parks & recreation 
performance measures. 

THE MERCER GROUP, INC. 39 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (61412014) 



C. SERVICE DELMZRY STRUCTURE 

I.) Parks &Recreation Services in Mountain Brook 

Findings 

As with most parks and recreation agencies, services are delivered through a variety of providers, 
including Parks staff, other city departments, contractors, and collaborative partners. 

> In-House Services: Services provided in-house by Parks employees are the result of 
years of work experience and management decisions, often executed through the City's 
annual operating and capital budgets. Major areas of service are: 

Administrative and clerical support 
Customer service requests (direct to Parks or forwarded from City Hall) 
Construction (limited scope projects) 
Facility management and maintenance at the Parks facility, the Sports Complex, 
and at city parks and trails. 
Maintenance of athletic fields in city parks and at schooIs 
Small engine maintenance 
Herbicide application 
Mosquito control 

> City Support Services: The Parks Department is supported by several City 
departments in providing services. From interviews with city department heads and 
DPW managers and supervisors (in the DPW study), sewice support for the most part is 
excellent and includes: 

Finance: Budgeting, accounting, accounts payable and receivable, human 
resources, payroll, purchasing, information technology, and the like 

Fire: GIs system, but the system is little used by Parks 

Planning: Paths and Sidewalks PIan, Land Use Plan, and Village Master Plans. 

Public Works: Vehicle maintenance, equipment sharing, concrete work, large 
trees, leaf disposal, and sidewaIks and trails construction. 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 40 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



> Collaboration and Coordination: Parks' primarily collaborative relationships are 
with City Schools and athletic associations. 

Mountain Brook Public Schools: Parks maintains and the following associations 
program recreational activities at the following city schools: 

J High School 
4 Junior High School 
4 Elementary Schools (Brookwood, Cherokee, Crestline, and Mountain 

Brook) 

Mountain Brook Athletics: This private associate provides most recreational- 
level athletic programming within Mountain Brook, both outdoor and indoor. 
The director coIlaborates with Parks and the Parks Board. 

Mountain Brook Soccer and Lacrosse: These private associations provided 
most of the funds for and operate and maintain Rathrnell Park. 

Other Athletic Associations: Also sponsor competitive, travelling teams. 

P Contracted Services: A significant number of services are contracted out to the 
private sector. It appears fiom interviews that most of these service providers are doing a 
good job for the City. Major contract services are: 

Ball field lights (except minor problems) 
Major electrical work 
Large trees (or DPW) 
Large construction projects 
Concession stands 
Major repairs on equipment (mowers, etc.) 
Janitorial services at the Parks Facility 
Leaf pickup along streets 

Like in Public Works, contracting decisions are based on past history with limited formal 
analysis of comparable costs and effectiveness. Based on studies for other Parks and 
Recreation Departments, these contracted and collaborntive services seem reasonable 
on the surface. But, Parks lacks a detailed analysis to confirm this set of contract 
and collaborative relationships best serves the City. 

In our decision-making model, contracts and collaborations should be used for seldom 
performed services, when special equipment and training are required, when staff lacks 
time or training to perform a task, in unique circumstances, and where there is a good 
supply of private sector contractors or public sector partners. 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 41 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



12.Recreation Services Collaboration: The service deIivery model for parks & 
recreation services in Mountain Brook has two distinct sides. Parks maintenance is the 
responsibility of the Parks Department, with help from Public Works and private sector 
contractors. 

Recreation services, however, are provided primarily by outside parties, the private 
athletic associations, and not by city departments. The recreation providers are very 
independent of each other and provide distinct services. 

Coordination of recreation services, therefore, is a chaIlenge in Mountain Brook, but has 
worked up to this point likely because everyone knows each other and is willing to 
cooperate. A great deal of reliance is placed on the Executive Director of Mountain 
Brook Athletics to pull together recreational programs to meet community needs, outside 
of competitive soccer and lacrosse at Rathmell Park. 

We suggest, therefore, that the City of Mountain Brook and its recreation services 
partners form a collaborative body, perhaps calIed the Mountain Brook Recreation 
Coordinating Council to assist in assuring that all community recreational needs are 
being met and that facilities and fields are adequate and scheduled optimally to serve all 
participants, particularly kids. Members would include: 

Parks Board member and City Council liaison 
Parks and Recreation Superintendent 
City Planner (meeting facilitator) 
Mountain Brook Schools representative 
Mountain Brook Athletics representative 
Mountain Brook Soccer and Lacrosse representatives 
Others as identified by the above 

13.Structure of Maintenance Services: With only Iimited intergovernmental 
relationships, the primary service delivery question is what services shouId be provided 
in-house and what should be contracted. Compared to other local governments, 
Mountain Brook's process for answering this question seems relatively informal and is 
based on decisions made years ago and carried on year after year. 

Although the present mix of contracted services seems reasonable based on other client, 
we recommend the Department be a bit more formal in analyzing the benefits of 
insourcing and outsourcing, with a particular focus on determining what it costs to 
provide in-house services so these costs can be compared to contract providers. This 
recommendation may indicate the need for a more intensive process for measuring time 
and materials invested in certain tasks. 

Exhibit 8 describes the Mercer Model for CoZlaboration and Contracting Decisions. 
Once activity costs are determined, we suggest Parks use the model to compare the 
benefits of in-house vs. contract operation for major activities. 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 42 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



D. ORGANIZATION AND STAFFING 

I . )  Parks & Recreation Assessment 

Exhibit 1 shows the latest version of the Organization and Staffing Plan for the Parks & 
Recreation Department. The plan defines six (6) organizational divisions, five of these work 
crews, with sixteen positions: 

9 Superintendent (Grade 23) 
P Turf Grass Supervisor (Grade 18) 
P Labor Supervisor (Grade 15) 
b Administrative Clerk (Grade 13) 
P Skilled Laborer (Grade 12) 
B Laborer (No Grade Assigned) 

These positions are assigned to the various crews and units as folIows: 

9 Administration (2): Superintendent and Office Manager 

P Complex Crew (4): Labor Supervisor and Laborer (3 with the new position assigned for 
the spring/swnmer sports season) 

P Odd Job Crew (2): Skilled Laborer (2). Note that two Skilled Laborers were recently 
moved from the Complex Crew to the Odd Jobs Crew under the direction of the 
Superintendent in order to support all other crews 

P Turf Crew (3): Turf Grass Supervisor, SkilIed Laborer, and Laborer 

9 Route Crew (2): Labor Supervisor and Laborer. Note that the third position on Exhibit 1 
is currentIy assigned to the Complex Crew, 

B Parks Crew (3): Labor Supervisor, Skilled Laborer, and Laborer. 

In addition, one seasonal and three summer Laborers are added to suppIement the full-time work 
force due to summer season demands. Hours fhnded amount to almost two FTEs. 

In the past the department has been assigned other positions, not currently approved or 
budgeted, including: 

P Parks Maintenance Supervisor (Grade 17) 
P Administrative Assistant (Grade 16) 
P Truck Driver (Grade 13) 

Overtime is budgeted at 6.28% of Salaries, most of which is used to cover pre-scheduled evening 
and weekend shifts at the Sports Complex. 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 43 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



Organization and staffing issues identified in interviews and surveys include: 

P Organization Plan: 
Parks Maintenance Supervisor Position: This Grade 17 position has been 
proposed as an upgrade to one Labor Supervisor position (Grade 15), currently 
assigned to the Parks Crew. Creation of this position also is seen as a kind of 
consolation prize for one internal candidate for the Parks Superintendent position. 
The other internaI candidate currently occupies the Turf Grass Supervisor 
position, which is classified as Grade 18, The City Manager and Parks 
Superintendent support this reclassification, with a final decision by the Jefferson 
County Personnel Board. Their reasons are: 

J Responsibility for 73 acres scattered across the city (most of any crew) 
J Number of structures in city parks (most of any crew) 
J Required knowledge of plant materials 
J Alabama Pesticide Applicators License 
J Possible future growth in responsibilities (e.g., Cahaba River Park) 
J Department-wide responsibility for overtime scheduling and safety 
J Effectively the assistant to the Parks Superintendent 

Administrative Support: Some administrative work (e.g., time and leaving 
accounting for all employees) now is done by the Parks Crew Supervisor, an 
unusual assignment. This work appears better placed with the Office Manager. 

Staffing: 
Additional Employees: The funding of the 16Ih position, a Laborer, in the current 
fiscal year satisfies, in our opinion, the immediate need for an additional position 
in the Parks Department. Assuming the Parks Board and City Council agree with 
the Superintendent's higher expectations for parks and, particularly, islands, the 
Route Crew may need another Laborer in the future. 

Crew Rotations: The Complex and Route crew members (Skilled Laborers and 
Laborers only) rotate every two weeks (formerly monthly). The Labor 
Supervisors do not rotate. The Parks Crew does not participate in crew rotations. 

Training and Cross-Training: Work performed is maintenance in nature. 
Training requirements, except for supervisors, is technical (equipment use, 
maintenance techniques, and the like). The Parks Superintendent would like to 
increase technical training and cross-training across crews. 

Pesticide License: The Parks Superintendent would like members of the Odd Job 
Crew to get their Alabama Pesticide Applicators License, which covers 
herbicides, insecticides, fungicides, etc. 

Small Engine Mechanic: Mowers, blowers, and other parks equipment is 
maintained primarily by a member of the Odd Job Crew. Some more complex 
work is contracted. In the past, Parks had a Small Engine Mechanic position. 

THJl MERCER GROUP. INC. 44 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



Recommendations 

14,Organiza tion Plan: 
a) Parks Maintenance Supervisor: Mercer understands and accepts the reasons 

stated for creating a Parks Maintenance Supervisor position through a 
reclassification of one Labor Supervisor. 

However, the Labor Supervisor for the Complex Crew also has significant 
responsibilities, including the ongoing need to satisfy customers (parents and 
kids) using the ball fields at the complex. In addition, the Labor Supervisor for 
the Route Crew will have enhanced expectations in the future as noted earlier. 
These positions also may be candidates for reclassifications in the future. 

b) Administrative Work: Move all administrative work (time reporting, payroll, 
etc.) from the Parks Crew Supervisor to the Ofice Manager. 

a) Additional Employees: Except for our comment about the Route Crew, current 
staffing is adequate, assuming daily absences for vacation and sick leave average 
1-2 people. See the Human Resource Management section for comments on 
controlling employee absenteeism. 

The Parks Superintendent shouId discuss the idea of higher standards for the 
appearance of parks and island with the Parks Board and City Council. Assuming 
these bodies agree, add one position to the Route Crew for a total of seventeen. 
All crews would then have at least three people assigned. 

b) Crew Rotations/Cross-Training: Consider adding the Parks Crew to the rotation 
plan to enhance skill levels and cross training across the work force 

c) Training: DeveIop a Training Plan that starts with a Skills Requirenlent Matrix 
for each budgeted position. These skiIls would include pruning techniques, 
knowledge of pIant and shrubs, pesticide application, and care of sports fields as 
identified by the Parks Supervisor. Then develop an ongoing training program to 
ensure worker skills are adequate for the work assigned. 

d) PesticidetHerbicide Licenses: We encourage the Odd Jobs Crew to get these 
licenses. 

e) Small Engine Mechanic: Although we don't believe Parks needs a dedicated 
SmalI Engine Mechanic, the member of the Odd Job Crew working on equipment 
should take training, as needed, to become certified to work on this equipment. 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 45 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6f412014) 



E. OPERATIONS MANAGEMENT 

I.) Tlze Mercer Model for "Manapinp tlze Numbers" 

Mercer strongly believes in the value of "Managing /he Numbers" in all departments, but most 
especially in construction and maintenance operations where productivity and prioritization is 
critical. Elements of an effective Operations Management program include: 

> Operational Plans: In conjunction with the priorities of elected officials and senior 
managers as expressed in government-wide Strategic Plans, budgets, and other 
documents, departments should develop Functional Business Plans that define: 

Inventories and condition assessments for public infrastructure 
Strategies, detailed goals and objectives, and a list of work activities 
General schedules for projects, preventative programs, recurring work, and (from 
prior experience) allowances for anticipated emergencies 
Resource requirements (people, equipment, facilities, materials) and planned 
utilization of these resources 
Funding needs in operating and capital budgets to carry out the plan 
Management organizational plan and programs to foster accountability 

> Standards, Guidelines, Policies, and Procedures: Based on the Business Plan, 
departments should define technical, efficiency, cost, productivity, and performance 
standards, both internally and for contractors. These standards should include 
responsiveness and performance objectives for service requests, complaints, emergencies, 
and routine work. At an operational level, policies, standing orders, and procedures 
should be defined for all responsibilities, activities, and tasks to meet these standards. 

> Work Scheduling and Management: Ongoing and emergency work (based on 
prior experience) should be programmed into yearly, monthly, weekly, and daily 
schedules, and work coordinated across crews to accomplish all work assignments. Crew 
supervisor should ensure work is on schedule and all materials and equipment supplied, 
as well as coordinate with other crews and senior management. The department director 
should meet with supervisors weekly and with the entire staff monthly, 

> Time, Workload, and Cost Data: Departments should collect and compile time 
data for people and equipment by pre-defined activities and projects, as well as data on 
work performed and materials used. They then should develop fully-loaded (including 
supervision, non-productive time, benefits, and centraI support services) project and 
activity costs to allow comparisons to cost standards and alternative service providers. 

> Activity and Cost Reporting: Departments should compile and compare work 
performed to work standards, goals, and objectives, and plans in order to report monthly 
to City management and elected officials on recent activities, planned activities, new 
issues and challenges, and the status of the Functional Business PIan. 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 46 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (614/2014) 



> Operational Plans: Parks has not prepared a complete inventory of public 
infrastructure (e.g., signs, trees, parks amenities) and has not prepared conditions 
assessments for these assets. The department, however, has an excellent knowledge of 
assigned infrastructure, and routinely visits and works in each park, island, and playing 
field to visually note conditions and maintenance needs, 

The department lacks a software system to inventory, manage, and maintain these assets. 
The City's GIs system, however, may help with this inventory. For example, the 
department did not have readily-available acre statistics for city parks to use in this study. 
The Parks Superintendent used Google Maps to estimate acreage for this report. 
Software products to manage assets and operations (e.g., work orders) are cataloged by 
the American Public Works Association in its annual Buyers Guide. Several noteworthy 
vendors are: Alden Systems (in Birmingham!), Cartegraph, CifiTech Systents, Cityworks, 
Logic Concepts, and Pub Works Tracker. 

The City through its urban planning program has not developed a long-range Parks and 
Recreation Master Plan to assess community needs for infrastructure and programs and 
develop a plan for meeting these needs. As noted earlier, playing and practice fields may 
have availability issues in a few years. The Citizen Survey gives high marks to what is in 
place today, but does not provide a clear guideline as to what is needed in the future. 

9 Standards, Guidelines, Policies, and Procedure: Most standards, guidelines, 
policies, and procedures are informal and based on long-experience with maintenance 
and operations responsibilities. Again, however, Parks employees have developed a good 
understanding of expectations in performing their work and are committed to excellence. 
Parks performs many recurring and seasonal tasks that supervisors, crew leaders, and 
employees appear to understand and perform well. And, the Parks Superintendent is 
interested in codifying these guidelines. 

> Work Scheduling and Management: Work schedules foIIow weekly or seasonaI 
schedules that are well known to each crew. Except for the Odd Jobs crew, which 
receives work assignments each morning from the Parks Superintendent, the work week 
follows long-established patterns for mowing and trimming, trash collection, Complex 
services, and the like. Work requirements follow sports seasons for the Complex and 
Turf Crews to ensure fields and amenities are ready for opening day. 

Crew supervisors work consistently with crew members throughout the day and are filly 
aware of resource and other needs. The Parks Superintendent coordinates informalIy 
with each crew supervisor in the morning, at lunch, and at the end of the day as needed, 
but management team meetings are rare. 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 47 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (61412014) 



> Time, Workload, and Cost Data: Collection of time, work accomplished, and 
cost data to "manage the numbers" is limited. An automated Work Management System 
is not used. Interestingly, the National Recreation and Parks Association says smalIer 
Parks Departments seldom use this type of automated tool to manage and track work. 
Mountain Brook seems in the edge of whether or not to expand automation of this data. 
In any case, the process and system need to be relatively simple. 

P Activity and Cost Reporting: Reports on Parks activities focus on "what we did 
this month," which the Park Superintendent presents to the Parks Board at their meetings. 
Cost reports are not prepared below the level of the operating and capital budgets, 

Recommendations 

16.0perations Management: We support the Parks Superintendent's interest in 
improving the process of "managing the numbers." We encourage development of: 

Annual asset inventories and condition assessments 
Annual operations plans for each crew that incorporates the findings of the 
inventory and condition assessments 
Standards and guidelines for major non-construction activities, starting with 
maintenance of traffic islands assigned to parks 
Written policies and procedures for major maintenance activities 
Expansion of written annual/seasonal and monthly/weekly schedules for each 
crew 
Activity and cost reports for major activities performed by each crew (e.g., for 
each large park, islands as a group, the Complex, playing fields) 
Weekly management team meetings (crew leaders and office manager) 
Monthly staff meetings, perhaps in conjunction with the monthly safety meeting 

Compilation of information and reporting will be dimcult until Parks acquires and 
implements an automated Asset and Work Management System. We suggest the 
department explore the capabilities of ernGovPower's work order and activity reporting 
system used by the DPW Garage as a possible tool to support "managing the numbers." 
Also, Parks should explore the capabiIities of the City's GIs and system from other 
vendors listed in the APWA Buyer's Guide, including Alden Systems located in 
Birmingham. 

Like in PubIic Works, extension of the lunch hour due to travel time totfrom the Parks 
yard likely reduces the productivity of the Route, Parks, and Turf Crews. We suggest the 
Parks Superintendent work with each crew supervisor to optimize daily work routes to 
reduce travel time around lunch and to ensure the return time at the end of the day is 
optimized at 3: 10 to 3: 15 PM, depending on the need to cleanup and recharge materials 
and tools for the next work day. In the mornings, crews leave the yard for work 
assignments at a reasonable time. 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 48 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (61412014) 



F. RIESOURCE MANAGEMENT 

The Resource Management section presents general findings, issues, and recommendations for 
six Resource Management functions: 

P Equipment Management, 
F FaciIities Management, 
P Financial and Budgetary Management, 
> Materials Management and Purchasing, 
P Personnel AdministratiodHwnan Resource Management, and 
> Technology AppIication. 

Findings 

> Equipment Management: Equipment is well-provided by the City (the City is said 
to be "very generous") and well-managed and maintained by Parks. Only a few issues or 
needs were expressed by employees: 

Parks must borrow Public Works' bucket truck and it may not be available 
A tractor needs to be replaced and a trencher attachment purchased 
Some weed eaters and blowers are getting old 
Need a leaf vacuum 
Need a "stick" edger ($250) 
Short a few tools 

Equipment maintenance performed by the Odd Jobs Crew appears to meet department 
needs. More difficult tasks or work on large mowers is contracted out. The department 
had a Small Engine Mechanic in the past. 

Work on individual pieces of equipment is tracked on an Excel spreadsheet, with a page 
for each piece. BasicalIy this spreadsheet serves as a work log. 

Vehicle location is not tracked with an on-board computer tracking system, which is an 
increasingly common feature in the public sector, particularly for equipment moving 
across the city. This feature might be beneficial for the Route, Parks, and Turf Crews 
that operate across the City. 

Vehicles are fbeled at the Public Works Yard, which is not particularly convenient to the 
Parks yard. Area gas stations, if P&R used he1 cards, also are not particularly 
convenient to Parks and Recreation. The small tank at Parks is for mowers and the like. 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 49 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



> Facilities Management: The new Parks facility is a significant upgrade from the 
old sheds at the top of the hill. When considering functionality of the complex, however, 
a few issues are evident: 

Parking is limited 
VehicIe flow is restricted as vehicles move between the building and the fence at 
the rear drop off 
Water runoff at the back of the facility feeds into materials piles 
Additional security cameras are needed (per staff interviews) 

Existing parks, for the most part, are wonderful, aIthough some amenities are aging 
(lights, drinking fountains). The City, however, lacks some parks facilities and recreation 
services commonly found in communities your size: 

Arts and Crafts Programs 
Dog Park 
Public Swimming Pool 
Recreation Center with gym@) and exercise facility 
Senior Center and Programs 
Skateboard Park 

Stakeholders interviewed for the study say some of these facilities and programs are 
available through private gyms and country clubs located in the City. 

A field lighting study is funded through the current budget. 

The number of practicelplaying fields, per Mountain Brook Athletics, are near capacity 
for current recreation and sports programs. In a few years, fields may not be adequate to 
meet demands per Mountain Brook Athletics. 

Through the Parks Board, citizens can propose memorials for fiiends and relations. A 
typical memorial is a bench in Jemison Park. 

Facility rental can be requested online through the City's web site. 

> Financial and Budgetary Management: The City provides well for Parks' 
operating and capital needs, and manages money conservatively, A few department-wide 
issues, however, are evident: 

Budgeting: The City's budgeting process and the Parks budget is primarily 
financial with limited forma1 documentation and consideration of goaIs and 
objectives, pIanned activities and projects, and return on investment. 

The Parks budget allocates f h d s  to one operating cost center and to capita1 
projects. The budget worksheets provide lots of detaiIs and explanations at the 
account level. It's easy to read and understand. 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 50 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



Financial Management: The City's Finance Department drives Parks' role in 
financia1 management activities (accounts payable, accounts receivable, payrolI, 
and the like). 

Administrative staff in Parks seems to understand its role and Finance's policies 
and procedures. As noted earlier in Organization and Staffing, however, the 
Parks Crew Supervisor now is responsible for administrative tasks that seem 
better assigned to the Office Manager. 

Technology: The City uses the ernGovPower suite of software to manage 
finances, fixed assets, payroI1, purchasing, and the like. From interviews with the 
Parks Superintendent and Office Managers, the system seems to suit their needs, 
although a few activities are a bit cumbersome, like hand-carrying the signed 
payroll print-out down to City Hall instead of using electronic signatures. 

P Materials Management and Purchasing: 
Inventory Control: Inventories of materials, supplies, and tools are managed 
reIatively informally by the Parks Department. 

Procurement Authority: The department can spend up to $1,000 before needing 
to generate a purchase order through Finance. Although many cities have a 
somewhat larger department-level authority, this is a reasonable level for the 
types of supplies and materials Parks purchases. 

Only a limited number of Parks employees are on store accounts or have P-Cards 
(Procurement Cards), causing some degree of inconvenience when parts or 
supplies are needed per empIoyee interviews. 

> Personnel Administration/Human Resource Management: 
Classification and Compensation: Position ~Iassifications are determined by the 
Jefferson County Personnel Board. Positions are re-rated periodically or upon 
request of the City. 

Policies and Procedures: The department either lacks a policy related to late 
arrival and absences, or is not enforcing the procedure. Several employees noted 
the inconvenience caused by morning call-ins (2-3 people out per day). Although 
attendance is better than in the past, it's still not optimal. 

Rewards: Beyond the basic pay plan, monetary and non-monetary rewards are 
limited or non-existent. These could include awards, small monetary rewards for 
high performance (e.g., gas cards), or pay for certifications. 

THE MERCER GROUP, INC. 51 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



Safety and Training: Parks holds a monthly safety meeting and the Parks Crew 
Supervisor is on the City's Safety Committee, which meets quarterly. At the 
department Safety Meeting, Parks employees can ask the Superintendent general 
questions. The department had a Safety Manual that is posted by the time clock. 

Training for new hires is informal and on-the-job. Similarly, employee training 
generally is informal and related to technical functions of the job (e.g., mower 
operation). Parks does not have a position-by-position Training Plan. 

The Parks Superintendent has ambitions to expand and improve training, 
particularly to improve job performance and the condition of parks, as well as for 
the Odd Job Crew to get certifications. 

Supervisory training is available through the Jefferson County Personnel Board. 

A mandatory drug test program is in place and the Park Superintendent is 
committed to making sure a11 employees participate. 

Succession Planning: Last fall's hiring of a new Parks Superintendent has 
resolved succession needs for the foreseeable future. 

> Technology Application: As noted earlier, the department has not automated asset 
and work management hnctions via information systems solutions. We understand 
emGovPower, which is used to manage the DPW's fleet operation, has work order and 
inventory control modules that might be used by Parks. 

As noted in the DPW study, GIs is used in a limited way, prirnariIy for maps. The City 
has not located and inventoried many city assets (e.g., parks, signs, trees), as a first step 
in documenting assets condition and maintenance activities needed to keep these assets 
up to standards. 

Parks uses Microsoft Windows 7 and Microsoft Office 2003, both of which are behind 
most current versions. The Parks facility is connected to the City's network. IT support 
staff from the Finance Department are said to do an excellent job in support of Parks' IT 
needs. 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 52 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



17.Resource Management: 

a) Equipment Mana~ement: In the next budget cycle, the Parks Superintendent should 
work with Parks employees to identify all equipment and tool needs, inchding the 
items listed in our findings. 

The Odd Jobs Crew should continue to maintain smaH engine equipment, but as noted 
earlier should get certifications as appropriate. The Excel spreadsheet is a reasonable 
way to track repairs until Parks has an Asset Management Information System. 

Consider the value of vehicle tracking software to track the location and routing of 
P&R trucks and crews. 

Seek more convenient fueling options, most likely private gas stations using fie1 
cards. 

b) Facilities Management: The new facility is excellent and a huge upgrade from the 
prior facility, but has some structural limitations in parking and vehicle flow as noted 
in the findings. The water run-off and security camera issues appear to be easily 
solvable. 

The City needs to commission a Park and Recreation Master Plan to be overseen by 
the City Planner. This plan typically is a component of the City's General or 
Comprehensive Plan, along with the Traffic PIan, Facilities Plan, and Drainage Plan. 
The plan would: 

4 Inventory current facilities and programs, 
4 Assess citizen and community interests for the future, perhaps through a 

survey or at least stakeholder and citizen focus groups, 
J Describe parks and recreation trends nationally, and 
4 Project community needs into the future, with a focus on emerging sports and 

the number of playing/practice fields. 

c) Financial Mana~ement: The Parks Superintendent should include goals and 
objectives and performance measures in Parks' budget submission to go beyond 
numbers to something like a return on investment. 

With the City's help, the Superintendent should review emGovPowerYs capabilities to 
automate more financia1 functions, such as payroll and inventory control. 

All financial and administrative fict ions should be shifted to the Office Manager. 

d) Materials Management: Increase the department's purchasing authority to $1,000, if 
not already implemented after the Public Works study, based on IeveIs applied in 
other Mercer clients. Increase the number of people on store accounts and P-cards 
(perhaps all Skilled Laborers?) to improve crew efficiency, 

THE MERCER GROUP, INC. 53 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



e) Personnel Administration: Work with the Personnel Board to review the 
classification and maintenance-related work performed by the Parks Crew Supervisor 
as a foundation for potential reclassification to Parks Maintenance Supervisor. Do 
not consider administrative work that should be shifted to the Office Manager. 
Include all Labor Supervisors in the reclassification process. 

Enhance the Safety and Training Programs, particularly the training of new hires, 
skill enhancement for current employees, and development of a formal Training Plan. 

Either expand the monthly Safety Meeting to include general departmenta1 topics or 
have a second meeting for general topics. In addition, hold weekly management team 
meetings. 

With the assistance of the Finance Director (also the HR Director) create and 
implement an EmpIoyee Absence Policy to cover vacations, sick leave, and other 
leave, with a particular focus on morning call-ins. Track sick leave used by each 
employee and set an annual goaI that mirrors industry best practices (perhaps no more 
than 6 days per year?). 

Develop rewards for cost-saving or eficiency-gaining suggestions and for the 
employee of the month.year. 

Ensure the Drug Test Program covers a11 employees over the period of two years. 

f )  Technolow Amlieation: Expand application of technology to asset and work 
management, including GIs. But, don't make the system so complicated it bogs 
down Parks staff in data entry, which means tracking only major activities and not 
detailed tasks. 

As needed, upgrade Microsoft products to most current versions (perhaps a citywide 
issue). 

THE MERCER GROUP. MC. 54 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/412014) 



IK IMPLEMENTATION 

This chapter of the report presents an Implementation Process, Schedule, and Issues and 
Challenges to support implementation of recommendations in the Mercer Report. 

A. IMPLEMENTATION PROCESS 

The Implementation Process began early in the project as the consultant met with public 
officials, City management, and DPW managers and staff during fact finding activities and the 
review of preliminary ideas. The process continued as we presented and reviewed the Draft 
Reports. The process to implement the recommendations is based on a structure of Oversight 
and Management, Technical Actions and Coordination, and Monitoring and Reporting. 

Oversig/zt and Management 

The City Manager is the natural person to manage and oversee the implementation process and 
periodically report to the City Council. His role should include: 

P General oversight of Parks implementation actions. 
P Facilitation of meetings and reports. 
> Policy deveIopment, review, and decisions. 
9 Contract and agreement review and approval. 
> Finance and budgeting. 
> Communications and public relations. 

Teclznical Actions and Coordination 

In support of the City Manager, the Parks and Recreation Superintendent, and Parks supervisors 
should serve as the Implementation Management Committee for the Parks and Recreation 
Assessment. This group would be responsible for: 

P Development of detailed implementation plans 
> Supplemental analyses that may be required. 
> Management and tracking of progress in irnpIementing recommendations. 
P Development and impIementation of new policies, organization and staffing plans, work 

processes, business practices, etc. 
9 Interagency, interdivisional, and interdepartmental coordination. 
> Measurement and presentation of budgetary impacts and changes. 
9 Development of implementation activity and performance reports to the City Manager. 

THE MERCER GROUP, INC. 55 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 

- - - - - 



Similarly, the Parks Superintendent, as needed, would organize Technical Committees for 
Specific Recommendations. These committees would include Parks supervisors and 
employees, as well as City management such as the City Planner, as required for each 
recommendation. These committees would have duties similar to the Implementation 
Management Committee. 

Reporting and Monitore  

The Department Committee should receive reports from the Technical Committees, then provide 
quarterly StatusRrogress Reports to the City Manager for review and action. 

These Quarterly Reports should cover: 

9 Progress to date on the implementation of the twenty-four strategies. 
P Issues, obstacles, and changing situations affecting implementation. 
B Services delivered and performance against agreed upon standards and specifications. 
P Upcoming activities in the quarter to follow. 

The Manager wouId incorporate these reports into his QuarterIy Reports to the Mayor and 
City Council until all recommendations are implemented. 

THE MERCER GROUP, INC. 56 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



B. IMPLEMENTATION ISSUES 

The following implementation issues and constraints need to be resolved to ensure the 
community makes progress on implementing recommendations in the Mercer Report. 

Mavor and Citv Council 
> Ensure the City's Strategic Direction is clear and Parks fully understands it role and 

citizen expectations. Commissioning the Parks and Recreation Plan is a key activity in 
clarifying hture needs. 

> Continue to invest in Parks infrastructure and resources and services. 

P Continue to work with the Parks Board to ensure it continues to have strong members. 

Citv's Management Team 
9 Assist Parks in facilitating development of the Parks and Recreation Plan. (City Planner) 

9 Assist Parks as it explores automation of asset and work management processes, expands 
use of GIs, and applies new modules from emGovPower. (Finance Director and IT 
support staff) 

P Work with the Personnel Board on classification and other human resource management 
issues. (Finance Director) 

Parks Board 
P Assist in defining the meaning of a "higher level of service" for islands and parks. 

P Encourage development of a few, meaningfbl performance measures that are tracked 
throughout the year and reported monthly. 

Parks and Recration Depurtrnent 
9 Reviewhpdate departmental values to ensure all employees understand and buy into 

them. 

> Resolve any employee survey or questionnaire issues within Parks' control. 

> Continue to evolve Parks' system for "managing the numbers" based on the 
Superintendent's goals and Mercer's Model for Managing the Numbers. 

P Work with the City and the Personnel Board on classification and other human resource 
management issues, particularly the Absence Policy. 

THJ3 MERCER GROUP. FNC. 57 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 

- -  - 



C. IMPLEMENTATION PLAN AND SCOIRIECARD 

Implementation P h  

Major implementation actions are identified on Table 6 that follows. For each action item the 
plan identifies: 

A Reference to the page in the text where the recommendation is discussed, 
> A priority Ranking, 
> A suggested CompIetion Date, 
9 The person@) primarily responsible for implementation of each recommendations, 
9 Comments and explanations, and 
P Costs andlor Savings. 

Key implementation actions and timetables are highlighted below: 

P Track and take action on Parks-controlled issues and opportunities in the employee 
surveys and questionnaires by late summer of 2014 and reapply the surveys in late 2015 
to measure progress. 

> Update Park' values and define goals, objectives, and performance measures related to 
the mission by the end of 2014. 

P Continually assess the mix of in-house and contract~collaborative services. 

9 Based on final approval by the Parks Board and City Council regarding a "higher level of 
service," adjust the staffing plan in the next budget to add a Laborer position, and watch 
for staffing implications of "managing the numbers" over time. 

9 Improve operations and resource management issues and chaIlenges over the next year or 
two, particularly "managing the numbers," succession planning, and classification. 

9 Research opportunities to expand automation of Parks functions in 2014, particularly in 
the areas of asset and work management, GIs, and financial accounting, then implement 
in 2015, 

Recommendations 

18.Implementation Process and Plan: In the very near hture, set up the 
implementation process (management, committees) as detailed earlier and finalize the 
Implementation Plan in Exhibit 9. 

THE MERCER GROUP, INC. 58 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



Table 6 
Preliminary Implementation Plan fur tlze P& R Study 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 59 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 

I. Track Survey Issues Parks Superintendent 

4. Future Use of Questionnaires Parks Superintendent None 
5. Adjust the Management Parks Superintendent Supervisory 

6. Future Use of MPP Parks Superintendent None 
7. Legal Structure 131 No Changes None 
8. Develop a P&R Vision 3 2 A 

9. Create a Citywide Friends of the 
Parks organization 

10. Implement a Strategic 
Planning Process 

11. Develop a Functional Business 

Mayor & Council 
City Manager 
P&R Board 
Parks Superintendent 
Mayor & Council 
City Manager 
P&R Board 
Parks Superintendent 
P&R Board 

None (a net 
fund-raiser) 

Staff Time 

Staff Time 

City Manager 
P&R Board 
Parks Superintendent 

33 

I I 

Plan 
I 

Parks Superintendent 
Parks Staff 

12. Improve Collaboration with Staff Time 
Community Partners 

See Strategic 
Direction 

A 

13. Enhance Maintenance Services 

14. Adjust the Organization Plan: 
(a) Parks Maintenance 

37 

4 1 

44 

44 

44 
44 

4 7 
52 

57 

, 

A 

Supervisor 
(b) Administrative Works 

15. Adjust Staffing and Assignments: 
(a) Add a ~aborer  (1 7th position) 
(b) Other 

16. Improve Operations Mgt. 
17. Improve Resource Mgt. 

18. Track Implementation Progress 

37 ] A 

B 

B 

A 

A 
B 

A 
B 

A 

Parks Superintendent 

Mayor & Council 
City Manager 
P&R Board 
Parks Superintendent 
Mayor & Council 
City Manager 
P&R Board 
Parks Superintendent 
Parks Superintendent 
Parks Superintendent 

All 

Implement DPW 
Work Order 
System 

(a) Upgrade 

(b) None 

(a) $30,000 
(b) None I 

$20,000 for Parks 
Master Plan 
Staff Time 



This chapter of the report provides eight exhibits that provide data and analytical tools to support 
our findings and recommendations in the text of the report, 

> Exhibit 1 : P&R Organization Plan 

P Exhibit 2: Results of the SWOT Assessment 

P Exhibit 3: Results of the Employee Surveys 

R Exhibit 4: Master Employee Survey Document 

P Exhibit 5: Master Organizational Questionnaire 

> Exhibit 6: Master Management Philosophy Profile 

P Exhibit 7: Performance Indicators in PubIic Services 

P Exhibit 8: Mercer's Decision Criteria for Contracting 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 60 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (61412014) 



INSERT EXHIBIT 1 H E M  AND DISCARD THIS PAGE! 

THE MERCER GROUP, INC. 61 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



The SWOT Assessment compiles findings from interviews with City oficials, members of the 
the Parks and Recreation Board, department employees, and external stakeholders (e.g., athletic 
association, school principals and athletic directors, and landscape architect) in order to identify 
Emerging Issues and Challenges. 

The assessment identifies: 

P Strengths: Current strengths, areas of excellence, high-value services, areas receiving 
customer/stakeholder praise, and the like. These strengths should be protected and 
enhanced by the Management Study. 

Weaknesses: Current weaknesses, areas needing improvement, low-value services, areas 
receiving customer/stakeholder complaints, and the like. These weaknesses should be 
resolved or significantly improved by the Management Study. 

9 Opportunities: Opportunities are future opportunities, challenges, ideas, alternatives, 
and comparative examples that may be applicable to the City. These opportunities should 
be incorporated into recommendations for future service expansions, enhancement, and 
reengineering by the Management Study. 

P Threats: Threats are national, regional, and local threats that would cause the "wheels to 
fall off' and compromise the organization's ability to provide services per the 
expectations of city officials, customers, and stakeholders. These include national 
recessions; the impact of federal and state laws; natural disasters; resource shortages; 
facility and equipment limitations; loss of key employees, and the like. 

When recording issues and ideas in the assessment, we look for themes across the group of 
interviewees. We present a list of key issues and ideas, as well as lists for sub-categories 
such as: 

> City Officials, which includes, as appropriate to each client, elected officials, City 
management, City support departments, and advisory boards and committees. 

9 External Stakeholders, which includes customers, citizens, collaborative partners, and 
regulatory agencies. 

> Department Employees, full-time, part-time, seasonal, and imbedded contractors. 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 62 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



I.) Overall SWOT Assessirtent with Kev Ideas and Issires 

Maior Current Strengths 

B Strong, well-coordinated Park & Recreation Board 
9 New Park Superintendent ("lots of weaknesses have been fixed" with her coming, 

including organization plan, staffing, and employee attitudes) 
P Skills, experience, and teamwork of departmental staff 
> Quality and condition of parks and athletic fields ("incredible," "outstanding") 
> Paths and Sidewalks Plan nearly implemented 
9 Schools-ParksICity and Associations-Parks/City relationships 

Maior Current Weaknesses 

P Need a long-term vision and plan for parks and recreation (Comprehensive Parks & 
Recreation Plan and associated Parks Department Functional Business Plan) 

9 Need more playing fields, particularly big fields for practices 
Impact of traveling teams on opportunities for recreational-level sports 

B More internal structure, systems, and controls (e.g., enforced tardiness policy) 
P Is the department on cruise control? 

Maior Future Opportunities and ChalIenpes 

> Cahaba River Park 
> Community Center with gyms (but lack of support in the past) 
B Keeping up with participation in emerging and growing sports, like lacrosse recently 

Provide adequate opportunities for participation at the recreation level for older kids 

Maior Threats 

P National recession affecting the local economy and city revenues 
9 Cuts in staffing or equipment repIacement funding 
P Hiring employees with the wrong attitude 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 63 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



2.) Citv Officials, including the Park Board 

SWOT comments are listed below for City Officials (Council Liaison, City Manager, Finance 
Director, and City Planner) and the Parks Board. Comments listed multiple times are at the top 
of each category and bolded. 

Current Stren~ths 

9 Strong Parks Board (work well together, "ongoing conversation," "in sync") 
9 New Superintendent and staff 
> Director of MB Athletics 
> Cahaba River Park (and parks in general) 
9 Paths and Sidewalks Plan 

9 Champion-driven process for identiQing and providing parks and programs 
9 Public proactively expresses needs 
9 Field condition and scheduling 
9 Parks, trails, sidewalks, and beautification 
9 Expectations are surpassed 

Current Weaknesses 

> Need more fields, particularly Big fields to cover practice needs 
9 Planning for P&R can be driven by personal rather than community interests 
9 Need a Parks 8s  Recreation Plan and a Functional Business Plan for the department 
9 Parks programs said to be mature and on "auto-pilot." 

9 Lost staff time around lunches 
P "Byzantine" structure of athletic providers (no "clearinghouse") 
9 Reactive approach to implementing identified need (wait for land) 
9 High cost of land in the city (land-locked) 
P Limited opportunities for regional partnerships for athletics 
b City lacks a RecreatiodCommunity Center (but alternatives available in the private 

sector and at country clubs) 
9 Need more gyms 
> Need more st& with new park coming 
b Maintaining triangles (1 00+) 
P Need a Dog Park 
> Need a governing board instead of an advisory board 

THE MERCER GROUP, INC. 64 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (614/2014) 



Future Opportunities and Challenges 

P Cahaba River Park 
P Community Center (but lack of support in past) 
B Supplemental fees for non-residents 
> Keeping up with participation in emerging and growing sports (like lacrosse) 

P Few adult and senior programs at present 
P Greater "ownershipy' of triangles by neighborhoods 
> Supplemental fees for non-residents non-property owners 
> Managing "memorials" in the parks 
B Providing recreation-level sports opportunities as children get older and face the 

competition of traveling teams (What to do with kids "left behind?") 

Threats 

> None identified 

THE MERCER GROUP, INC. 65 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (61412014) 



3.) External Stakeholders 

SWOT comments are listed below for the City's landscape architect, athletic associations, and 
City schools. Comments listed muItiple times are at the top of each category and bolded. 

(Current Strengths 

> Parks does a great job on fields ("incredible" and bboutstanding") 
> Schools-ParkslCity relationship and partnership (a community effort to raise 

Mountain Brook's kids) 

P Trails and SidewaIks Plan 
P Turf Crew 

Current Weaknesses 

> Impact of traveling teams on recreational sports 
P Need a long-term Vision for Parks & Recreation to include programs, fields, 

recreational services 

P Enough staff at the Sports Complex? 
> Minor needed improvements at the Sports Complex and other parks 
> Mowing work might be better scheduled with schools to avoid the infrequent times the 

schools have earIy morning activities outside 

Future Opportunities and Challenges 

> Community Center with gyms 
P Providing facilities and fields for emerging or growing sports 

Threats 

> None identified 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 66 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



4.) Parks Devartment Enzplovees 

Current Stren~ths 

P Quality of sewices (make the city look good and citizens proud) 
> Dependable, consistent, and talented staff 
> Parks, Complex, and fields 
9 Staff comradery and teamwork 
9 Parks staff says a lot of weaknesses have been fixed with the new Superintendent 

(e.g., organization, attitudes) 

P Safety record 
l+ Cross-training and variety of staff skills 
9 AbiIity to work with the public 
9 Islands and playing fieIds in great condition 
P CIeanliness of parks 

Current Weaknesses 

P No set policy on tardiness or  absences (only vague guidelines) 

9 Be more involved with other departments 
l+ Increase awareness of details in grounds maintenance 
P Some equipment is needed, needs to be replaced, or needs to be upgraded 
P Some supervisors could help more with crew's work 
P Clean the road signs 
9 Rotate crew members among crews 

Future Opportunities and Challenees 

9 Establish and enforce rules 
P Advancement opportunities (but limits with JCPB) 
P Training for current jobs and to support promotion (e.g., supervising) 
9 Ensure consistent workload within and across crews 
P Better communications 

Upgrade the Sports Complex (lights, trash cans, water fountains, rest rooms, heaters) 
9 Upgrade some equipment (e.g., blowers) 
> Limit Iarge truck traffic in the vilIages 

Threats 

P Not getting the job done o r  done right due to too few people 
P Hiring employees with the wrong attitude 

9 Not keeping playgrounds up to code 
9 Economy and national policies 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 67 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



The Mercer Group asked employees of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department to 
complete several employee surveys and questionnaires. Master copies of these documents are 
provided as Exhibits 4,5, and 6 that foIlows this exhibit. These tools, along with interviews and 
data collection, are Mercer's primary means of understanding and assessing the emergency 
services agencies. 

I . )  Overview of tlte Survevs 

Mercer applied four surveys and one questionnaire that all employees completed: 

P Values Survey, 

P Organizational Climate Swvey (OCS), 

P GRIPES or Management Practices Survey, 

P Resource Management Survey, and 

P Organizational and Job Duty Questionnaire. 

In addition, we asked supervisors to complete our Management Philosophy Profile. 

In total, we processed fourteen completed responses from Parks & Recreation employees, which 
is dose to a 100% response rate. Because of the relatively small number of employees in the 
department, survey results are not reported by division or crew. Instead we present the survey 
data in three ways. 

P A11 Employees (14) 

P Supervisors (6), including the Superintendent, Office Manager, Turf Grass Supervisors, and 
three Labor Supervisors 

P Non-Supervisors (S), including Skilled Laborers (4) and Laborers (4) 

Information in the questionnaires is used for the SWOT Assessment, the organization and 
staffing review, and the operations evaluation. 

THE MJIRCER GROUP, INC. 68 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



2.) Description of Mercer's Emalovee Suwevs 

P ORGANIZATIONAL CLIMATE SURVEY (OCS): Presents a list of sixty statements or 
questions designed to measure the health of the culture of each agency based on the 
following tweIve cultural factors (five questions for each factor). 

Career Opportunities 
Compensation and Benefits 
Employee Involvement 
Information and Communications 
Management and Supervisory Competence 
Understanding of Organizational Goals 
Productivity and Services 
Quality Emphasis 
Receptivity to Change 
Working Conditions 
Work Group (Managers and Supervisors) Problem Solving 
Work Group (teams) Coordination and Cooperation 

Scoring options are Strongly Agree, Agree, Undecided, Disagree, and Strongly Disagree. 
The results are compiled into three scores (StrongIy Agree + Agree, Undecided, and 
Strongly Disagree + Disagree). Scores compared to Mercer's Minimum and High 
Performance Standards are shown on the tables that follow. 

VALUES SURVEY: Asks employees to identify Key Values using sample values in the 
public sector to help frame their response. The survey also asks these questions: 

Are values documented in a formal Values Statement? 
Are values given to employees and posted in work sites? 
Are values created with employee input? 
If a large organization, are divisionlunit values created and linked to the overall 
Values Statement? 
Are values lived, even if informally, on a daily basis? 

We expect the number of Yes answers to be at Ieast double the number of No answers. 

THE MERCER GROUP. MC. 69 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



P GRIPES SURVEY: The "Do You Nave GRIPES?" survey help Mercer understand key 
management practices in each agency. Factors rated are: 

Growth: Organizational Support and Training Hours 

Respect: By supervisors, senior managers, elected officials and other departments, 
and through rewards 

Information: To do your job well and to understand policies and business decisions 

Potential: The degree to which the agency taps employee skills and experience (not 
a measure of productivity!) 

Empowerment: Adequacy of authority to make decision on the job 

Support: From administrative staff in the agency, senior agency managers, central 
administrative support (in the County and Hospital), and fiom elected officials and 
others downtown 

Most factors are rated fiom No/None to Always, which are converted into scores of 1,2,3, 
4, and 5, with Potential rated from 0% to 100%. Scores also are compared to Mercer's 
Minimum and High Performance Standards on the tables that fo1Iow. 

9 RESOURCES SURVEY: Asks employees to rate and comment on a the following nine 
categories of resources: 

Staffing 
Facility 
Vehicles 
Tools 
Gear 
Office Equipment 
Computers 
Materials 
Other Resources (contracts, leases, technical support, capital projects, fees) 

Factors are rated as Poor, Fair, Adequate, Good, and Excellent, which are converted into 
scores of 1, 2, 3, 4, and 5, Scores also are compared to Mercer's Minimum and High 
Performance Standards on the tabIes that follow. 

TWE MERCER GROUP. INC. 70 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



rS PERSONNEL PRACTICES SURVEY: Asks employees to rate and comment on the 
following ten human resources/personnel practices: 

Hiring Process 
Career Ladders 
Training 
Grievances (initiated by the empIoyee) 
Discipline (initiated by the employer) 
Performance Evaluations 
pay 
Benefits 
Labor Relations (related to union employees so note rated in this study) 
Morale 

Factors are rated as Poor, Fair, Adequate, Good, and Excellent, which are converted into 
scores of 1, 2, 3,4, and 5. Employee scores also are compared to Mercer's Minimum and 
High Performance Standards on the tables that follow. 

P MANAGEMENT PHILOSOPHY PROFILE (For Supervisors Only): Asks managers 
and supervisors o& to define their current and targeted philosophy toward managing based 
on the following twelve criteria with each rated on a continuum from the first to the second 
factor. 

Personality: Type (introverted to extroverted) 
Personality: Risk-taking (Iirnited to extensive) 
Personality: Initiative (reactive to proactive) 
Personality: Solutions (feelings to analysis) 

Work Focus: People (internal to external) 
Work Focus: Work (details to broad issues) 
Work Focus: Resources (things to people) 
Work Focus: Time (past to Euture) 

Relationships: Status (boss to empowering) 
Relationships: Delegation (centraVlimited or decentral/a lot) 
Relationships: Decisions (open or closed) 
Relationships: Communications (informal to formal) 

THE MERCER GROUP, INC. 71 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 

- - - - -- -- 



3.) Calculation, Analvsis, and Report* o f  Suwev Results 

Or~anizational Catepories 

Because the department only has 15 employees, we did not score the surveys by Organizational 
Categories (e.g., Administration, Complex Crew, Parks Crew, Route Crew, and Turf Crew). A 
small number of employees in each category (2-4) might compromise confidentiality of 
individual scores, particularly if we reported scores in each category by Employee Type. 

The Mercer Group reviewed each survey document, scored them, and compiled scores in three 
ways: 

P A11 Employees 
P Managers and Supervisors (Employee Type 001) 
P Other Employees (Employee Type 002) 

Employee Cornmen ts 

Comments on each survey were reviewed by the Mercer project manager and added to the 
SWOT Assessment or Emerging Issues Iist, assuming enough employees commented on a given 
subject. 

Reporting the Results 

The pages that follow provide detailed reports on the scores for each survey, as well as an 
analysis of the scores. 

Major findings fiom the surveys are included in the text of the report to highlight low scores, 
areas needing improvement, and potential action items. 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 72 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



4.) Results for tlte Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Devartment 

Values Survev 

ANALYSIS OF THE SURVEY RlESULTS 

QUESTIONS 
Documented in writing 
Given to all employees or posted 
Created with employee input 
Related to agency-wide values 
Lived each day even if informal 
Key Values Listed in Survey 
(mentioned in more than % of the 
employee surveys) 

MERCER STANDARD 

P The Values Survey for the Parks & Recreation Department only meets the Mercer 
Standard in the last question (values are Iived daily). 

b The other questions are a toss-up, with very few employees having input to the creation 
of current values. 

Yes 
7 
5 
2 
8 

10 
Community 
Stewardship 
Integrity 
Respect 
Safety 
Keep parks clean 
Yes = at least two times No 

P Therefore, work is needed in updating the department's values with the participation of 
employees. 

No 
7 
9 

12 
5 
3 

P The first three values above are suggested by Managers (001) and the last three by 
employees (002). 

THE MERCER GROUP, INC. 73 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



Organizational Climate Survey (OCS) 

Notes: The first score is Strongly Agree + Agree and the second is Strongly Disagree + Disagree 
Undecided scores are not reported above 
Agree scores under 50% and Disagree scores over 40% are bolded 

SUBSCALES 
Career Opportunities 
Compensation & Benefits 
Employee Involvement 
Information & Communications 
Management Competence 
Organizational Goals 
Productivity & Customer Service 
Quality Emphasis 
Receptivity to Change 
Working Conditions 
Work Group Problem Solving 
(by managers and supervisors) 
Work Group Coordination 
(by crew members) 
OVERALL SCORES 
NUMBER OF SCORES 
MERCER'S MINIMUM 
STANDARD 
MERCER'S HIGH 
PERFORMANCE STANDARD 

ANALYSIS OF THE SURVEY RESULTS 

P Overall Scores: Overall, the scores are above the High Performance Standard, with 
several well above the standard (70+% Agree). 

All Employees 
62.86% / 20.00% 
58.57% / 18.57% 
71.71% / 20.00% 
82.86% / 7.14% 
65.71% / 20.00% 
72.86% / 1 1.43% 
71.43% / 8.57% 
65.71% 1 14.29% 
62.86% 1 18.57% 
60.00% / 12.86% 
68.57% / 1 1.43% 

70.00% / 7.14% 

67.76% / 13.57% 
Fourteen 
>50% Agree 
<40% Disagree 
>60.0% Agree 
<30.0% Disagree 

P Key Subscales: Employee scores for Quality Emphasis (55% Agree) and Productivity & 
Customer Service (60% Agree) are lower than expected based on Mercer interviews with 
staff. 

Undecided: Most Undecided scores are low (attunder 20%) except for employee scores 
for Working Conditions (40.00%), which is surprising with the new facility; 
Compensation & Benefits (35.00%); Work Group Problem SoIving by managers 
(30,00%); and Productivity & Customer Service (30.00%). 

Supervisors 
73.33% / 13.33% 
80.00% / 13.33% 
93.33% / 6.67% 
100,0% / 0.00% 
73.33% / 20.00% 
83.33% / 6.67% 
86.67% / 6.67% 
60.00% / 6.67% 
80.00% / 16.67% 
80.00% / 10.00% 
80.00% / 13.33% 

90.00% / 6.67% 

74.17% / 10.00% 
Six 
>SO% Agree 
<40% Disagree 
>60.0% Agree 
<30,0% Disagree 

P Supervisors and Non-Supervisors: The overall scores are within +/- 18%, which is 
above the Mercer study norm of +/- 10%. Subscales with significant differences are 
Compensation & Benefits, Employee Involvement, Information & Communications, 
Productivity & Customer Service, Receptivity to Change, Working Conditions, and Work 
Group Coordination (by crew members). 

Non-Supervisors 
55.55% / 25.55% 
42.50% / 22.50% 
55.00% / 30.00% 
70.00% / 12.50% 
60.00% / 20.00% 
65.00% / 15.00% 
60.00% / 10.00% 
55.00% / 20.00% 
50.00% / 20.00% 
45.00% / 15.00% 
60.00% / 10.00% 

55.00% / 7.50% 

56.09% 1 17.34% 
Eight 
>50% Agree 
<40% Disagree 
>60.0% Agree 
<30.0% Disagree 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 74 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



GRIPES Survey 

Notes: Scores we11 under Mercer's Minimum Standard (3.0) are bolded 

FACTORS 
Growth-Organizational Help 
Growth-Training Hours 
Respect-By Supervisor 
Respect-By Senior Manager 
Respect-By Elected Officials 
Respect-Non-Monetary Rewards 
Information-Job Related 
Information-Policies & Procedures 
Potential (Talents Tapped) 
Empowerment 
Support-By Department 
Support-By Management Team 
Support-By Support Services 
Support-By Elected Officials 
OVERALL SCORES 
MERCER'S MINIMUM 
STANDARD 
MERCER'S HIGH 
PERFORMANCE STANDARD 

ANALYSIS OF THE SURVEY RESULTS 

> Overall Scores: Overall, the scores slightly exceed our Minimum Standard, but mainly 
because of the influence of very positive Supervisor scores. 

All Employees 
2.80 
2.30 
3.43 
3.69 
2.34 
2.52 
3.55 
3.24 
80.5% 
3.54 
3.68 
3.84 
3.24 
3.09 
3.17 
3 .OO / 60% 

4.00 / 70% 

> Key Factors: Potential Tapped and Empowerment are very positive for Supentisors, but 
not Non-Supervisors. 

> Respect and Support: Scores for Mercer clients tend to decline the higher up the 
supervisor or elected official. 

Supervisors 
3.17 
2.60 
4.00 
3.67 
2.67 
3.17 
4.67 
4.33 
90% 
4.50 
4.50 
4.67 
4.33 
4.17 
3.88 
3.00 / 60% 

4.00 / 70% 

> Supervisors and Non-Supervisors: The scores are significantly different (1.42 on a 1 to 
5 scale), except for Potential, which is positive for both. The difference is particularly 
great (over 2.0) for Information-Job Related, Information-Policies & Procedures, 
Support-Support Services, and Support-Elected Officials. 

Non-Supervisors 
2.43 
2-00 
2.86 
3.71 
2.00 
1.86 
2.43 
2.14 
71% 
2.57 
2.86 
3.00 
2.14 
2.00 
2.46 
3 .OO / 60% 

4.00 / 70% 

THE MERCER GROUP, INC. 75 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (61412014) 



Resources Survev 

Notes: Scores well under Mercer's Minimum Standard (3.0) are bolded 

ANALYSIS OF THE SURVEY RESULTS 

FACTORS AII Em p lo y ees 

P Overall Scores: Overall, the scores are close to our High Performance Standard, but a 
few Non-Supervisor scores are lower than our Minimum Standard (Staffing, Gear). 

Supervisors 
3.50 
4.00 
3.83 
4.17 
4.17 
3.50 
4.00 
4.17 
4.00 

1 3.93 

Staffing 
Facility 
Vehicles 
Tools 
Gear 
Office Equipment 
Computers 
Materials 
Other Resources 
OVERALL SCORES 

9 Key Factors: Staffing is rated low by Non-Supervisors, perhaps driven by concerns 
about the time to fill vacant positions and the new work coming with Cahaba River Park. 
In addition, the new Superintendent has not had time to fi.111~ transition to a new approach 
to managing staff. 

Non-Supervisors 
2.63 
3.75 
3.38 
3.38 
2.88 
4.50 
3.60 
4.20 
4.20 
3.61 

3.07 
3.88 
3.61 
3.78 
3.53 
4.00 
3.80 
4.18 
4.10 
3.77 

9 Supervisors and Non-Supervisors: With only a few exceptions (Staffing, TooIs, Gear), 
scores are within +/- .5 points of each other. 

THE MERCER GROUP, INC. 76 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 

MERCER'S MINIMUM 
STANDARD 
MERCE'S HIGH 
PERFORMANCE STANDARD 

3.00 

4.00 

3 .OO 

4.00 

3.00 

4.00 



Personnel Practices Survey 

Notes: Scores well under Mercer's Minimum Standard (3.0) are bolded 

FACTORS 

ANALYSIS OF THE SURVEY RESULTS 

Hiring Process 
Career Ladders 
Training 
Grievances 
Discipline 
Performance Evaluations 
pay 
Benefits 
Morale 

P Overall Scores: Overall, the scores are above the Minimum Standard for both 
Supervisors and Non-Supervisors. 

P Key Factors: Training and Performance Evaluations are slightly below our Minimum 
Standard and Morale exceeds it. 

3.99 
3.34 
3.50 
3.32 
3.14 
3.40 
2.86 
4.05 
3.82 

P Supervisors and Non-Supervisors: The score difference is less than +/- .5, except for 
much lower Non-Supervisor scores for Career Ladders, Training, Grievances, 
Performance Evaluations, Benefits, and Morale. 

OVERALL SCOWS 
MERCER'S MINIMUM 
STANDARD 
MERCER'S HIGH 
PERFORMANCE STANDARD 

THE MERCER GROUP, INC. 77 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 

4.17 
3.67 
4.17 
3.80 
3.40 
4.20 
3.00 
4.67 
4.50 

3.80 
3 .OO 
2.83 
2.83 
2.88 
2.67 
2.71 
3.42 
3.14 

3.49 
3.00 

4.00 

3.95 
3.00 

4.00 

3.03 
3.00 

4.00 



Exhibit 4 
2MkQSTER EMPLOYEE SURVEYS 

PARKS & RECREATIONMAGElMENT STUDY 

Purpose: The Purpose of these surveys is to allow you to express your views about working for 
the City and for your department. 

Codes, Not Names: Your name is not listed on the survey document. Instead, it is coded by the 
following Organizational Categories and Employee Types. If not already marked, please circle the 
Organizational Category and EmpIoyee Type that apply to you. 

ORGANIZATIONAL CATEGORY: 100 - ALL Employees 

EMPLOYEE TYPE: 001 - Managers and Supervisors 
002 - Non-supervisors 

Survey Elements: The survey has four parts that all employees wiIl complete, plus a fifth part 
for managers and supervisors: 

ORGANIZATIONAL CLIMATE SURVEY (OCS): Exhibit 4-A presents a list of sixty 
questions designed to measure the health of the culture of the organization based on twelve 
cultural factors (five questions for each factor). An overview of the OCS, instructions, 
questions, and space for your comments are provided. This survey should take about 30 
minutes to compIete. 

VALUES SURVEY: What are your department's current Key Values? Exhibit 4-B shows 
sample values in the public sector that may help your fiame your response, and provides a 
sheet for you to list the values in place in your department. This survey should take about 
10 minutes to complete. 

GFUPES SURVEY: Please complete the "Do You Have GRIPES?" worksheet (Exhibit 4- 
C) to help us better understand the cuIture of the organization. Don't feel negative the title 
of the survey as this was first developed to structure employee comments and issues during 
a team building and organizational development process. GRIPES will give a quick 
indicator of organizational culture issues that complements and expands information in the 
OCS. This survey should take about 20 minutes to complete. 

THE MERCER GROUP, INC. 78 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



MOUNTAIN BROOK PARKS & RECRlEATION 
Overview of the Employee Surveys 

RESOURCES MANAGEMENT SURVEY: Exhibit 4-D presents a series of Resource 
Management issues to be rated, with space provided for explanations of you ratings. This 
survey should take about 15 minutes to complete. 

MANAGEMENT PHILOSOPHY PROFILE (For Supervisors Only): Exhibit 6 (in a 
separate document) asks managers and supe~isors to define their current and targeted 
philosophy toward managing based on twelve criteria. When returned, put it in a 
separate envelope from the other surveys so the Mercer Group can give specific 
feedback to individual supervisors without compromising confidentiality on the other 
surveys. This feedback wiI1 NOT be included in the final, written report, but shared 
privately with each supervisor. We wilI, however, provide general comments on the 
management philosophies of supervisors as a group in the report. This s w e y  should take 
about 20 minutes to complete. 

Tips on Completing the Surveys: FiIl each survey out as best you can. In some cases, 
except for the Organizational Climate Survey, a question may not apply. If so, please mark that 
question "N/A," for Not Applicable, and move on. UsualIy, the first idea that comes to mind is the 
best answer. So, move along and don't get bogged down with a lot of analysis and deep thought. 

Use of the Survey Information: These surveys and follow-up presentations are your primary 
inputs to the Mercer Group's work with the city. The questionnaire will be held in the strictest 
confidence by the consultants and shared only among the consulting team! For our report, we 
will compile issues and data across the organization in a way that will not compromise your 
position, job security, or  working relationships. 

Questions: If you have any questions, please contact Steve Egan, Mercer's project manager, by 
phone at 770-425-1 775 or by e-mail at sepranO,mercer~rouninc.com. 

Thank you for your cooperation and commitment to the project. 

TEFE MERCER GROUP. INC. 79 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



Exhibit 4-A 
ORGANIZATIONAL CLIMATE SURVEY 

I. INTRODUCTION TO THE OCS 

We are interested in your opinion regarding the quality of your work life, including relationships 
and communications with supervisors, among employees, and with other departments; the adequacy 
of resources; and the effectiveness of management systems. Remember: 

This is not a test - There are no right or wrong answers. Just mark the answer that you 
think best describes the current situation. 

Individual resnonses are confidential - No one will know how you marked your survey. 
Only the Mercer Group consuItants will see your survey response, and it will include Organizational 
Category and Employee Type codes only, NO NAMES! 

You will receive feedback on the overall results of the survey - We will compile the 
results of the survey by the organizational categories and employee types described below and 
recorded on the cover page of your survey form, then report back you the results of the surveys 
during an October visit to the City. 

ORGANIZATIONAL CATEGORY CODE NOTES AND COMMENTS 

All Employees 100 All empIoyees 

EMPLOYEE TYPE CODE NOTES AND COMMENTS 

Managers and supervisors 001 Department, division, sectionhit supervisors 
Employees 002 All others 

If you have any questions or concerns about the coding of your survey, please talk with your 
department head or supervisor, or call Steve Egan of the Mercer Group at 770-425-1 775. 

THJI MERCER GROUP. INC. 80 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (61412014) 



Structure of the OCS: The Mercer Group's Organizational Climate Survey (OCS) is a tool to 
measure employee views on sixty questions that are compiled in the OCS report into the 
following twelve subscales: 

Organization and Department Goals: The extent to which employees understand the 
goals of the organization and see the relationship between organizational goals and the goals of 
their department (or division). 

Productivity and Service: The extent to which employees believe that the organization 
has a strong commitment to service and maintaining an efficient organization. 

Quality Emphasis: The degree to which employees feel the organization is committed to 
maintaining high standards of quality for service. 

Management and Supervisory Competence: The extent to which employees have 
confidence in the knowledge and ability of their supervisors, and feel productive working 
relationships are easily established. 

Information and Communications: The extent to which employees feel that they 
receive important and usefbl information from their supervisors, managers, top management, 
and/or other departments. 

Work Group Problem Solving: The extent to which employees feel that managers and 
supervisors are interested in identifying and solving problems rather than avoiding them or 
pretending they don't exist. 

Work Group Coordination and Cooperation: The extent to which employees feel that 
the people in their work group work together as a team. 

Employee Involvement: The degree to which employees feel that the organization 
considers their viewpoint important. 

Receptivity to Change: The extent to which employees perceive the organization as 
open and receptive to change. 

Working Conditions: The degree to which employees feel that the amount of work 
expected of them is fair and equitable, and the tools, facilities, and equipment are adequate to do 
the job. 

Career Opportunities: The degree to which employees feel that career advancement is 
readily available to those who are qualified and seek it. 

Compensation and Benefits: The degree to which employees feel that the compensation 
package provided by the organization is fair and equitabIe. 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 81 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



I .  INSTRUCTIONS 

Please respond to the following sixty statements according to these instructions: 

1. PREPARATION: Check that the codes entered on cover page of the survey are 
correct. 

The Organizational Category should roughly compare to your place in the 
organizational chart, with some units combined to ensure we have a minimum of six 
people in each group (to ensure coniidentiaIity!), 

Non-supervisory employees are in the Employee Type (002) and directors, 
managers, and superintendents are in the Supervisor Type (001). 

If you think the codes on your form are wrong, please check with your department 
head before completing the survey. 

2. RESPONSE: Read each statement carefully, then decide how you feel about it. 

Circle the response that best expresses your opinion (only one response per 
question!). Answer ALL auestions! Provide comments after the last question or on 
additional sheets of paper. Possible responses: 

SA = Strongly Agree 
A - - Agree 
U = Undecided (It's OK to be unsure, but try to give an opinion) 
D - - Disagree 
SD = Strongly Disagree 

3. DEFINITIONS: Some terns used in the survey are defined below. 

Work Group: The group of peopIe with whom you work most frequently, 
which could be a crew or an ofice group. 

SectionDivision: Major organizational units in a department. 
Department: Parks & Recreation. 

Organization: Parks & Recreation unless the 
question is posed seeking an answer related to working for 
the City. 

Supervisor: The person to whom you directly report. 
Work Area: The location of your office or primary work site. 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 82 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



SA - Strongly Agree 
D - Disagree 

A - Agree 
SD - Strongly Disagree 

1. Most people understand the goals of our department. 

2. We have regular meetings in our department where 
everyone is encouraged to discuss work-related problems. 

3. My supervisor lets people know what is going 
on, which helps everyone do a better job. 

4. There are many ways we couId be more productive and 
efficient, but very few people in the department seem to care. 

5 .  The people in my work group are encouraged 
to work together as a team. 

6. Changes in procedures and work methods 
are easy to get approved in this department. 

7. Quite often, people in our department have to do more than 
is necessary because the work has not been planned properly. 

8. My supervisor believes that the ideas of the people who do 
the work are important to long-range plans. 

9. In order for me to advance in my career, I'll have to seek 
opportunities in another organization or department. 

10. Most employees in this department know what they are expected 
to do and produce quality work, even if it takes a little more time. 

1 1. If my supervisor would only stop looking over my shoulder, 
I could get a lot more work done. 

12. In comparison with other people I know who do similar 
work, I'm not paid nearly enough. 

U - Undecided 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 83 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



The people in my work group understand how the gods 
of our group fit into the goals of the department. 

In our department, we have good ways for dealing with 
little problems before they become big ones, 

The information andlor direction we get from other departments SA A U D SD 
is often incorrect, causing us to have to do the work over or correct it. 

My supervisor encourages us to find ways to do things better. SA A U D SD 

It seems that many of the people that I work with are more SA A U D SD 
concerned about getting recognition for themselves than 
working together as a group, 

My supervisor actively seeks out new 
ideas and approaches for doing things. 

As a general rule, the equipment, tools, and supplies that SA A U D SD 
are needed to do our work are avaiIable when we need them. 

Lots of times, my supervisor isn't included in important SA A U D SD 
decisions, and he/she finds out about changes after 
the decision has already been made. 

In our department, promotions are usually given to the peopIeSA A U D SD 
who deserve them, regardIess of how long they've been here. 

Most employees in this department take a lot of pride in what SA A U D SD 
they do and usually try a IittIe harder to produce quality. 

My supervisor is someone I can go to when I need 
help or have a problem. 

It seems that some people in this department get paid SA A U D SD 
more than they deserve, while others get paid less. 

THE MERCER GROUP, INC. 84 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (61412014) 

- - - - - - - - - . - 



Sometimes it seems like one group is going in one 
direction, and the other groups in the opposite direction. 

In our work group, we don't hide our problems, we get 
them out in the open and solve them. 

The information I need to do my job is readily available SA A U D SD 
in my department through my supervisor. 

As long as my job gets done, nobody 
seems to care how much it costs. 

The peopIe in this department are willing to help each SA A U D SD 
other out when the need arises without worrying about 
what job they're assigned to or what group they work for. 

When the need for change is obvious, my supervisor responds SA A U D SD 
quickly and implements the required change. 

Generally speaking, the department gets a good day's SA A U D SD 
work fkom everyone. 

My supervisor often makes and implements decisions without SA A U D SD 
first discussing them with the people who have to carry them out. 

It seems like we're always bringing in outsiders to fiIl positions SA A U D SD 
when we have plenty of qualified people right in the department. 

We spend a lot of time trying to improve our services SA A U D SD 

My supervisor evaluates people fairly and on the basis of SA A U D SD 
their performance, rather than "playing favorites." 

Most people in this department believe that our benefit SA A U D SD 
package is fair and better than plans in comparable communities. 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 85 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/20 14) 

- - - 



The goals of the department have very little to do with the 
work that I and others in my group do every day. 

My supervisor doesn't want to hear about problems. 
He/she pretends they don't exist. 

The people with whom I work are familiar with the 
department's policies and procedures. 

We are often striving to improve service in this department. 

There is a lot of jealousy and bickering 
among people in my work group. 

The department has established ways of doing things, and any 
suggestions on how to do things differently are usually rejected. 

The equipment and/or tools that we have in our group make 
the job easier and the department more efficient. 

When new procedures or policies are being developed, my 
supervisor often asks for input from empIoyees. 

Our department plans for the future by preparing people for 
future positions through training and education. 

In our department, the emphasis is on quantity, not quality. 

My supervisor tries to be "one of the guydgirls" instead of 
maintaining the distance necessary to effectively lead employees. 

Most people in the department would agree that our system 
for determining pay grades is fair and equitable. 

THE MERCER GROUP, INC. 86 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



The goals of our work group and our department are 
periodically reviewed and discussed with all employees. 

Many times, we have to create a crisis in order to get 
anyone to pay attention to our problems. 

Most of the information I get about what the department 
is doing comes fiom the "grapevine," 

Everyone in my work group understands 
the importance of providing good service. 

When conflicts arise in our work group or between our group and 
another, they are usually handled in a timely and constructive way. 

It's too hard to get things changed in this department, most 
people have just learned to accept things the way they are. 

Some people in the department have to work harder than others 
because some people don't have enough work assigned to them. 

In our department, employees are encouraged to be open about 
their opinions and feelings about work-related problems. 

Getting ahead in our department is based more on your 
performance than who you know. 

There is not enough emphasis in our department on quality. 

Most people in the department would agree that consideration 
is given to a person's ability to manage people before 
they are promoted. 

I would prefer to be compensated based on my performance 
rather than getting the same pay increases as everyone else. 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 87 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



IK COMMENTS REUTING TO OCS OUESTIONS 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 88 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



I. Values In Your Oraanization 

Exhibit 4-B 
ORGANIZATIONAL VALUES SUR VEY 

1. CURRENT VALUES: Based on your work experience in Parks & Recreation and the Sample 
Values on the following page, please list values that are in place in your department. If there is 
no formal Values Statement, list what values are informally in place, positive or negative! 

i 

2. STRUCTURE OF VALUES: Are Values: 

a. Documented in a formal Values Statement? 

b. Given to employees and posted in work sites? 

c, Created and updated with employee input? 

d. Related to a citywide Values Statement? 

e. Lived, even if informal, on a daily basis? 

0 
Yes 

0 
Yes 

0 
Yes 

u 
Yes 

0 
Yes 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 89 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



11. Sample Values In State And Locnl Governments 

THE MERCER GROUP, INC. 90 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 

STATE 
AGENCY 

Open communication 

Flexible, 
accommodating, 
And tolerant 

Fair, honest, 
cooperative 

Integrity 

Responsible and 
innovative problem 
solving 

Humor 

Empowerment of 
employees 

Teamwork and 
recognition 

Courtesy and respect 

Personal growth 

Pride in our work 

Responsiveness 

COUNTY 
GOVERNMENT 

The best service 
delivery possible to all 
we serve 

The planned, 
programmed 
acquisition, and wise 
use of our resources 

Our people are our most 
important resource 

Exhibit the highest 
standards of honesty, 
trust, and integrity 

Find and reward new 
and innovative ways to 
serve the customer 
better and become 
more efficient 

Equal opportunity for 
every citizen and 
employee based on their 
merits 

PUBLIC WORKS 
DEPARTMENT 

Build trust 

Act with honesty and 
integrity 

Open two-way 
communications 

Encourage involvement 
and listening at all 
levels 

Shared visions and 
common goals 

Encoura~e personal 
growth 

Treat all people with 
respect 

Reward the right 
behavior and coach 
positive behavior 

Value diversity 

Encourage fun 

Continuous 
improvement 

WATER 
UTILITY 

Open communicrttions 
based on honesty, 
listening, and 
appropriate feedback 

Flexibility to be 
creative and 
innovative 

Optimistic 

Respect 

Loyalty (to and from 
the utility) 

Helpfilness 

Openness 

Participatory 

Appreciative 

Excellence 

Integrity 

Humaneness, 
sensitivity, and 
compassion 



G R O m  - 

& ESPECT 

F 

I. GRIPES Worksheet 

Are you growing, learning, and expanding your personal skills and expertise 

Exhibit 4-C 
DO YOU HAVE ANY G-R-I-P-E-S? 

with the encouragement and help of the organization? 
ldi 

11 No 1 Sometimes 1 Often I Mostlv I Alwavs 11 

Is your work respected, supported, and recognized by your supervisor? 
11 1 I I I rl 

How many annual Training hours have you averaged the past three years? 

Very Few 

No I Sometimes I Often 

8 or Less 

Mostly I Always 

By senior managers (i.e. the director, division heads) in your department? 

By elected officials and City management. 

No 

By directors of other department? 

Often Mostly Always 

9 to 16 

No 

INFORMATION Do you have the information, access to help, and communications 

Sometimes 

technology to do your job efficiently and effectively ... 
I No Sometimes Often 1 AIways ] 

, 

17 to 24 

Sometimes 

and to understand the bases for policies and business decisions that affect 
your work and operation? 

Over 24 

Often 

Often 

THE MERCER GROUP, INC. 91 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 

Mostly 

None 

Always 

Mostly Always 

Sometimes Often Mostly Always 



P OTENTIAL Are you allowed and encouraged to work at 100% of your potential? If not, 
what percentage of your potential are you ailowed to apply right now? 

By Potential, we mean the skiIls, experience, and talents you have gained in 
a lifetime of working and learning. To what degree does the department tap 
these skills? 

E MPOWERED Are you given adequate authority to make decisions (or at least influence 

8 UPPORT Do you get the support (in t e n s  of services, resources, and encouragement) 
you need to accomplish your mission from administrative support units in 
your De~artment? 

decisions) and direct your subordinates in order to do your job, meet your 
objectives, and accomplish your mission? 

No 

From your department head and the department's management team? 
I I I I 

. 

Sometimes 

No 

No ( Sometimes I Often 

Often 

Sometimes 

From Purchasing, Personnel, Finance, Infomation Systems, and other 
central administrative and support services? 

Please provide any explanations for your responses to the GRIPES survey on 
the next page. 

Mostly 

No 

From governing officials, City management, and others at City Hall? 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 92 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 

Mostly 

Often 

Always 

No 

Always 

Sometimes 

Mostly 

Sometimes 

Always 

Often 

Often 

Mostly Always 

Mostly Always 



11. GRIPES Comments 

GROWTH: 

RESPECT: 

INFO: 

POTENTIAL: 

EMPOWER: 

SUPPORT: 

THE MERCER GROUP, INC. 93 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



Exhibit 4-D 
RESOURCE MANAGEMENT SURVEY 

I. Adequacy of Resources 

Please provide a rating (P=Poor, F=Fair, AmAverage or Adequate, G=Good, E=ExcelIent) of the 
adequacy of the following resources, and provide expIanations of the reasons for your ratings. 

STAFFING: Number of full-time, contract, temporary, and seasonal people; skill and 
experience mix; number of supervisors vs. workers; number of support positions; etc. 

Rating: - 

FACILITY: Location, size, layout, traflic flow, environmental conditions, parking, etc. 

Rating: 

VEHICLES: Number and mix of vehicles, featurcsfspecifications, availability, maintenance, 
etc. Includes automobiles, trucks, construction equipment, other rolling stock, and the Iike. 

Rating: - 

TOOLS: Number and mix of tools, features/specificiltions, availability, maintenance, etc. 
Includes saws, drills, hand tools, shop tools, testing and measurement, analysis, and the like. 

Rating: - 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 94 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



GEAR: Number and mix of tools, features/specifications, availabiIity, maintenance, etc. 
Includes uniforms, weapons, hardhats, shoes, vests, breathing apparatus, and the like. 

OFFICE EOUIPMENT: Number and mix, features/specifications, availability, maintenance, 
etc. Includes copiers, fax, teIephones, desks, chairs, bookcases, and the Iike. 

Rating: 

COMPUTERS: Number and mix, features/specifications, hardware, software, support 
services, training, etc. Includes citywide network, desktops, notebooks, handheld devices, 
GIs, survey equipment, CAD, ofiice automation systems, and the like. 

Rating: - 

MATERIALS: Office, maintenance, construction, training, etc. 

Rating: - 

OTHER RIESOURCES: Contracts and leases, technical support services, capital projects 
funding, fees and charges for services, operating budget, etc. 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 95 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



II. Personnel Administration 

Please provide a rating (P=Poor, FmFair, A-Average or Adequate, G=Good, E-Excellent) for the 
following topics, and provide explanations of the reasons for your ratings. 

HIRING PROCESS: Advertising, tests, interviews, hiring decisions, notifications, etc. 

Ratina: 

CAREER LADDERS: Job classifications, promotions within and across departments, etc. 

TRAINING: Funds and time for work-related seminars, workshops, conferences, etc. 

Rating: 

GRIEVANCES: Process, administration, communications, notifications, etc. 

Rating: - 

DISCIPLINE: Process. administration, timeliness, fairness, communication. etc. 

THE MERCER GROUP, INC. 96 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/412014) 



PERFORMANCE EVALUATIONS: Process, criteria and standards, forms. freauencv, 
meetings with sunewisors to review the evaluation, connection to nav increases. etc. 

Rating: 

PAY: Compared to the City jobs; compared to other governments and private employers in - 
the area; rewards for performance, skills, and certifications; etc. 

Ratina: 

BENETITS: Compared to other governments and private companies in the area, mix of 
benefit programs, flexibility, administration, etc. 

LABOR RELATIONS: City-union relationship, tone of contract negotiations, timely renewal 
of contracts, adequacy of representation in dealings with the City, etc. 

Rating: - 

MORALE: Current level of morale, relationships with supervisors and other employees, etc. 

Rating: 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 97 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



Exhibit 5 

ORGANIZA TIolVAND OPERATIONS QUESTIONNAIRE 
FOR PARKS & RECREATIOlVmAGEMENT STUDY 

L 

Name: Title: 

Division: Section: 

Location: Phone: 

The purpose of this questionnaire is to allow you to express your views about your responsibilities, 
workload, reporting relationships, operations, facilities and equipment, communications, and 
management practices. Please answer each question in terms of your organizational unit (division 
or section), even where the questionnaire says department! 

This questionnaire, employee surveys, and your interview are yow primary inputs to the 
Management Study. The questionnaire will be held in the strictest confidence by the 
consultants and shared only among the consulting team! For our report, we will compile 
issues and data across the organization in a way that will not compromise your position, job 
security, or working relationships. 

Please complete the questionnaire personally and do not ask others for help in answering questions 
or developing data. Rely on your own knowledge and readily available data and materials. It 
should take no more than one hours to complete the questionnaire, 

Answer each question to the best of your ability. Your answers should be complete, but need not be 
in great detail. If a question does not apply to you, mark it "Not Applicable" or "NIA." If you need 
more space or wish to provide added information, please insert this material immediately behind the 
page it relates to and number it the same as the question being answered. 

If you have any questions, pIease contact Steve Egan, the Mercer Group's project manager, by 
phone at 770-425- 1775 or by e-mail at scgan~mercer~roupinc.com. 

BY ( ), please seal your compIeted questionnaire in a large envelope and give it to ( 
), who will send it to me unopened. Thank you for your cooperation and commitment to the project. 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 98 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



I. YOUR WORK BACKGROUND 

1. Job History: Please tell us about your education and training, prior work experience, and 
employment history with the organization, including when you first were hired. A personal 
resume can be provided to answer this question. 

2. Future Goals: What are your future work and career goals? 

3. Special Skills: What special skills, experience, or talents do you have that might be of 
value to the organization. For example, one of our clients needed someone to oversee 
training activities. We found a Maintenance Worker who coordinated training for the 
regional Boys Scouts Council and fit the job perfectly. 

THE MERCER GROUP, INC. 99 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



11. SWOT ASSESSMENT 

4. Strengths: What are the major strengths and accomplishments of the organization? What 
are you proud of? What needs to be preserved and protected? 

(c) 

(dl 

5. Weaknesses: What services, policies, procedures, or practices need to be improved? 

(a) 

(b) 

(dl 

6.  Opportunities: What wouId you add, expand, or enhance if you were in charge? 

7. Threats: What event or circumstance would prevent the organization from accomplishing 
its mission? What would make the wheels fa11 off! 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 100 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



111. YOUR VIEW OF THE ORGANIZATION'S FUTURE 

8. Vision: What is the current Vision (i.e. the 10 or 20-year view of where the organization is 
going) for the department? Does the Vision need to be better defined or communicated? 

9. Mission: What is the current Mission (i.e., it's purpose or reason for being) for the 
department? Do they need to be better defined or communicated? 

f 0. Goals: What should the department's Goal's be over the next three years? 

1 .  Objectives: What should your department's time-specific and quantifiable 
Objectives be in the next fiscal year to support achievement of the departmental goals? 

TNE MERCER GROZfP. INC. 101 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 

-- - --  - 



IV. YOUR C U W N T  JOB DUTIES 

12. Job Description: We will collect a cop of your latest job description. How current and 
accurate is it? When was the last update? -1 
Please list below any major responsibilities added (A), changed (C), or deleted (D) since 
the job description was last updated. 

13. Job Duty Analysis: Please complete the Job Duty Analysis (Exhibit 5-A that follows) 
to provide us a profile of how you allocate time to your duties, each duty's contribution to 
the mission, each duty's mandate, and units of service. 

14. Backlog: Do you have a backlog of work on any of your activities? If so, list the activity 
and time (in hours, days, or months) to work down the backlog. 

15. Transfers To: Would any of your duties be better performed by another staff member or 
by another unit, section, or division? If so, list them below and tell us who else should 
perform each one? 

(a) To Whom 
(b) To Whom 
(c) To Whom 

16. Transfers From: Would you better perform duties now assigned to another staff 
member or by another unit, section, or division? If so, list them below and tell us who 
should transfer each one to you? 

(a) From Whom 
(b) From Whom 
(c) From Whom 

THE MERCER GROUP. MC. 102 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (61412014) 



Exhibit 5-A 
JOB DUTY ANALYSIS 

The Job Duty Analysis provides data on the major activities that you perform on a daily, weekly, 
monthly, or annual basis. We will compile and analyze the data in order to identi@ work 
misplaced in the organization or assigned to the wrong person, excessive fragmentation of work 
among several people, low priority activities that could be reassigned or eliminated, and other 
issues. 

Please complete the Job Duty Analysis Form on the next page as follows: 

> # and Short Description: From your job description, list each of your major job duties 
(most employees will have 6 tolo). If you have more than twelve major activities, continue 
on a second fonn. If a major duty is not shown on the job description, please list it on the 
form and note it is an addition to the list. Minor or infrequent duties should be grouped on 
one line ("Other Duties"). We expect that these Other Duties in total will represent a very 
small percentage (under 10%) of your total work hours. 

> % Time: Estimate the percentage of time you spend on each duty when you are working. 
Ignore vacation, sick, and other non-productive time. The total of a11 duties should equal 
1 OO%! 

P Priority: Rank each duty's priority to completing the mission of your unit: 

(A) Highest priority in supporting the mission 
(B) Lower priority in supporting the mission 
(C) Lowest priority in supporting the mission 

> Authority: Identify the authorization or source of each duty by the following codes: 

@) Department or division policy 
(C) Citywide policy or requirement 
(F/S) State or Federal law, regulation, or mandate 

P Units: Provide annual units of work produced for each activity, if known (e.g. number of 
perinits, applications processed, hearings, or transactions). Some activities will be ongoing 
throughout the year (e.g. management) and the unit of work will be "1 ." 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. I03 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



Exhibit 5-A 
JOB DUTY ANALYSIS 

NAME REPORTS TO 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 104 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 

# Short Description of Duty 

L 

% Time 

Other Duties 

Priority 

------ 

------. 

100% 

Authority Units 

. . . . . . - - - .. . . - - - - 



V. OPERATIONS MANAGEMENT 

17. Operations Improvement: Are there any operations, policies, procedures, systems, 
forms, reports, or management/financial controls that impede efficient and effective service 
delivery, customer/stakeholder satisfaction, and your job performance? If so, please identify 
each area below and provide a brief statement of the problem. The consultants will follow- 
up on each problem statement through interviews. 

TWE MERCER GROUP. INC. 105 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



Exhibit 6 

MANAGEMENT PHILOSOP= PROFILE 

L Overview Of And Scorecard For TIte MPA 

A supervisor's Management Philosophy is a combination of hisiher personality, approach to 
work, and relationships with subordinates and other employees. After reviewing the twelve 
criteria on Pages E-2 and E-3, compIete the work sheet on Page E-4, and enter your scores 
below: 

> Today's score for each of the Criteria. 

P The Target score you think you should be striving for in the fbture in order to maximize 
your benefit to the organization and achieve your long-term work goals 

The Mercer Group will insert a Mercer suggested score for you based on our experience with 
comparable positions and discuss it with you in a private interview. This exercise will take about 
15 minutes and should be used to prompt thought and introspection on how your work life can be 
more satisving, productive, and goal fulfilling. There are no right answers, only insights that 
hopefully wiIl resuIt in your personal and professional growth as a supervisor, as well as an 
enhanced organizationaI culture. 

T m  MERCER GROUP. INC. 106 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 

CATEGORY 

PERTONALITY 

CRITERIA 

TYP~ 

Risk-taking 

Initiative 

SoIutions 

WORK FOCUS People 

TODAY 

RELA TIONSHIPS 

Work 

Resources 

Tinre 

Stuttrs 

TARGET 

Delegation 

Decisions 

Comntttnicution 

MERCER 



II. Instrz~tions For Cornaletiizg The MPP 

Your Management Philosophy - and those of your superiors, peers, and subordinates - has a direct 
impact on the effectiveness of communications, employee relations, service quality, and 
organizationa1 performance and, in effect, the organization's ability to accomplish its mission, 
These philosophies, in conjunction with organization-wide mission, values, and operating 
practices, are the building blocks of your organization's culture. 

Described below are three major categories (Personality, Work Focus, and Relationships) and 
twelve factors that determine the Management PhiIosophy of supervisors at all levels in the 
organization (department heads, division managers, unit supervisors, foremen, crew leaders, and 
technicians). Each individual falls at or between the two alternatives listed below for each factor. 
Please read each of the twelve factors and rate yourself on Page E-4 of the analysis. 

PERSONALITY 
Type: INTROVERTED with attention to internal operation; much time 

spent in your office analyzing operations and/or writing memos; and 
Iess frequent interaction with customers, staff, officials, contractors, 
and stakeholders, or 

EXTROVERTED with attention to the external environment and 
frequent contact with staff and frequent interaction with customers, 
staff, oficiaIs, contractors, and stakeholders. 

Risk-ta king: 

Initiative: 

Solutions: 

LIMITED with conservative andlor tradition-based actions and a 
lower tolerance for risks and negative consequences, or 

EXTENSIVE with more open actions and decisions, and testing 
new ideas that break the mold, along with higher tolerance for risk 
and negative consequences. 

REACTIVE to the external environment and probiems, or 

PROACTIVE to environmental needs and ahead of problems. 

FEELINGS and intuition drive most decisions, or 

ANALYSIS and thinking drive decisions. 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 107 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 

- - 



WORK FOCUS 
People: INTERNAL with a focus on managing and controlling operations 

and personnel (inputs and efficiency), or 

EXTERNAL with a focus on customer relations and stakeholders 
(outcomes and effectiveness). 

Work: 

Resources: 

Time: 

You focus on DETAILS, such as workflow, procedures, systems, 
and operations, or on 

Broad, MACRO issues, visions, gods, and the "Big Picture." 

You focus on THINGS, equipment, materials, tools, computers, 
reports, or on 

PEOPLE, relationships, communications. 

You focus on PAST events, issues, and problems, or on 

FUTURE events, issues, and opportunities. 

RELATIONSHIPS 
Status: You are the BOSS (or the Expert), or 

You share power by EMPOWERING and enabling your 
subordinates, co-workers, and/or customers. 

Delegation: Authority and work effort resides CENTRALLY in you and/or key 
subordinates or co-workers, or 

Authority and work effort is delegated BROADLY to supervisors, 
staff, and/or co-workers, 

Decisions: A CLOSED process, involving yourself and key advisors, or 

An OPEN process, with many employees and stakeholders 
involved. 

Communications: INFORMAL, oral, multidirectional (up and down), nonhierarchical 
and flexible communication systems are used, or 

FORMAL, written, one directional (downward), hierarchical, and 
inflexible systems are used. 

THE MERCER GROUP. MC. 108 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 109 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 

III. Management Pltilosoplsy Workslseet 

PERSO a 
Type 

Risk-taking 

Initiative 

Solutions 

WORK FOCUS 

People 

I 

Mostly 
Introvert 

No 
Risks 

Very 
Reactive 

Mostly 
Feeling 

I 

Very 
Internal 

2 

Slight 
Introvert 

Few 
Risks 

Slightly 
Reactive 

Slightly 
Feeling 

2 

Slightly 
Internal 

Work 

Resources 

Time 

Slightly 
Details 

Slightly 
Things 

Past to 
Today 

2 

Slightly 
A Boss 

Slightly 
Central 

Slightly 
Closed 

Slightly 
Formal 

Mostly 
Details 

Mostly 
Things 

All in 
the Past 

3 

Middleof 
the Road 

Middle of 
the Road 

Middle of 
the Road 

Feeling & 
Analysis 

3 

Internal & 
External ----- 
Details & 
Macro 

Things & 
People 

Past to 
Week + 

3 ----- 
Middle of 
the Road 

Middle of 
the Road 

Middle of 
the Road 

Middle of 
the Road 

RELATIONSHIPS I 

4 

Slight 
Extrovert 

More 
Risks 

Slightly 
Proactive 

Slightly 
Analysis 

4 

Slightly 
External 

Status 

Delegation 

Decisions 

Communications 

5 

Mostly 
Extrovert 

Lots of 
Risks 

Very 
Proactive 

Mostly 
Analysis 

5 

Very 
External 

Slightly 
Macro 

Slightly 
People 

Past to 
Month + 

4 

SIightly 
Empower 

Slightly 
Broad 

Slightly 
Open 

Slight 
Informal 

Mostly 
A Boss 

Very 
Central 

Mostly 
Closed 

Very 
Formal 

Mostly 
Macro 

Mostly 
People 

Past to 
Year + 

5 

Mostly 
Empower 

Mostly 
Broad - 
Mostly 
Open 

Very 
Informal 



Exhibit 7 

PERFO-CE LNDICATORS X N  PUBLIC SER WCES 

The following performance indicators are applied in The Mercer Group's Management and 
Organizational Studies of Public Works, Public Services, and Utility agencies. The indicators 
supplement Mercer's 50 Management h u e s  for Organizational Improvement., which are used to 
assess performance issues related to management hctions, such as governance, planning, 
service delivery structure, management, operations, and resource management. 

Performance indicators may relate to inputs, outputs, and outcomes, and, where possible, present 
a measurable standard (absolute value or range of values). These model indicators and standards 
are tailored to each consulting client during a Mercer Management Study. 

Administration 
1. Citizen Satisfaction with Public Services at a high level fiom an annual survey (likely a 

Village-wide exercise such as the National Citizen Survey). 
2, Operating and Capital budgets delivered on time and fully meet Village standards. 
3. Monthly and Annual Reports delivered on time and fully meet Village standards, 
4. Department has developed and maintains a process for Managing the Numbers 

(utilization of people, equipment, and supplies and cost of service for major activities). 
5. Public Services website up-to-date per Village standards. 
6. Event and emergency notification system active (web, texts, emails). 

Engineering 
1, GIs in place to ident@ and map aIl assets. 
2. Cost of mchitectural and engineering services as a percentage of each capital project. 

(Goal = <6%) 
3. Time required to process engineering permits and reviews. (Goals = Immediately to 5 

work days for minor permits and less than 3 weeks for major perrnits/reviews) 
4. On time with documents supporting projects bid (timing set by Purchasing). 
5. Online permit application and tracking available on the website (same with Community 

Development Department), 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 110 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



Facilities 

1. Condition rating completed and updated annually for each building per a regular 
inspection program with more detailed inspection conducted every 3-5 years by 
consulting A& E firm. 

2. Preventative Maintenance schedule in place and adhered to. 
3. Time required to make repairs (Goals = 1 to 3 days for minor repairs and 2 weeks for 

major repairs, unless bid out). 
4. HVAC systems work basically a l l  the time. 
5. Cleaning'janitorial service daily based on detded standards. 
6. Internal and external s e d t y  system in place, with controlled access, lighting, and 

cameras. 

Fleet - 
1. Equipment Replacement Plan in place and adhered to (with minor modifications based on 

annual reviews of equipment condition by Fleet Operations staff). 
2. Preventative Maintenance schedule in place and adhered to. 
3. 95+% of vehicles and equipment available for use on a daily basis with some equipment 

(e,g., gabage trucks) available to meet scheduled services. 
4. Adequate backups to meet scheduled services. 
5. Time required to make repairs (Goals = Immediate for very minor repairs, 1 day for 

routine services like an oil change, 1 to 3 days for minor repairs, and 2 weeks for major 
repairs, unless bid out). 

6. Major repairs assessed for in-house vs. contract delivery based on in-house capabilities, 
cost, and garage work demand. 

7. Fleet operated as a self-sufEcient Intemal Service Fund, 
8. Mechanic billing rates based on fidl cost of service, not just salaries and benefits. 
9. Parts inventory t m  over 4 to 6 times per year. 
10, Obsolete parts reviewed during annual inventory and culled out. 
11. Parts markup under 15% of cost of the part. 

1. Tree inventory completed and up-to-date. 
2. Ptuning program in place and up-to-date. 
3. Emergency pruning or tree removal tasks completed in 4 to 24 hours of notice, if an 

emergency situation, and 48 hours if not 

Lights and S k a l s  
1. Asset inventory completed and up-to-date. 
2. Asset management system in place with routine maintenance program, 
3. Street light outages repaired within 36 hours. 
4. T-c signal problems repaired within 4 to 8 hours. 

TNE MERCER GROUP, PIC. 111 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



Parks Maintenance 
1. Parks asset inventory completed and up-to-date. 
2. Asset Condition Assessment conducted annually, with a focus on playgrounds, bleachers, 

and equipment that people regularly use. 
3. Parks maintenance plan in place and implemented, including mowing, pruning, 

bathrooms, picnic pavilions, and recreation centers. 

Streets 

1. Streets asset inventory completed and up-to-date to include streets, curbs and gutters, 
swales (if no curbs), sidewalks, etc. 

2. Street Condition Assessment conducted on a regular basis (Goal = Annual to three-year 
cycle). 

3. Street Condition stand& developed and approved, such as an average 80 rating. 
4. Capital Improvements program in place and funded to meet Street Condition Standard 

and Assessment. Key Indicator is number of miles of streets rebuild mually compared 
to the total miles of streets (Goal = About 5% per year or 20-year cycle for residential 
streets and a bit highdonger for arterials/collectors). 

5. Street repairs completed in a timely manner (varies from 8 hours to inclusion in the next 
cn? program). 

Savers 

1. Sewer operations meet state and fedend water quality rules and regulations. 
2. Sewer operates as a self-dcient  Enterprbe Fund. 
3. Sewer asset inventory completed and up-to-date to include sanitary and storm sewers, 

grates, manholes, lift stations, drainage structures, etc. 
4. Sewer Condition Assessment via televising and inspection is completed on a regular 

basis. 
5. Preventative Maintenance Plan defined and fdly implemented. 
6. Orease-Oil mitigation program in place. 
7. Sewer cleaning conducting for at least 1/3 of the system m u ~ l l y .  
8. Sewer repairs completed in a timely manner (varies fiom 8 hours to inclusion in next CJP 

P W ~ P ~ ) .  

Transit 
1. On time performance. 
2, Number of riders and passenger miles annually. 
3. Bus Condition assessed daily and repairs made quickly. 
4. Bus stops, if used, are cleaned up daily. 
5. Rider satisfaction f b m  regular sampling and annual m e y .  

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 112 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



Water Plant 
1. Plant meets state and federal water quality standards, rules, and regulations. 
2. Asset inventory completed and up-to-date. 
3. Condition Assessment conducted or a regular basis (Goals = In-house inspection annually 

and an in-depth analysis by consulting engineer every 3-5 years). 
4. Preventative Maintenance Plan defined and I l ly  implemented, 
5. Operations Mmual developed and updated every yea., with sb£fEuIly trained, 
6. Water operates as a seK-dcient Enterprise Fund. 
7. Rates based on fidl cost of service from rate study every 2-3 years. 

Water Distribution 
1. Distribution system meets state and federal water quality rules and regulations. 
2. Asset inventory completed and up-to-date, 
3. Condition Assessment conducted or a regular basis. 
4. Preventative Maintenance Plan defined and fi~LIy implemented, including valve exercise 

and hydrant flushing programs over no more than a two-year cycle. 
5. Operations Manual developed and updated every year, with stafl'fidly trained. 
6. Main breaks are repaired within 8 hours of notice (12" and under) and larger mains 

within 24 hours. 
7. Dead-end mains flushed as needed to maintain wafer quality in houses and businesses. 
8. Hydrants are inspected annually, painted, and repaired as needed (God = No more than a 

handful of hydrants out-of-sentice at my given time), 
9. Water pressure meets water supply and fire flow pressure standards. 
10. Water operates as a self-sufficient Enterprise Fund. 
1 1. Rates based on full cost of sewice fiorn rate study every 2-3 years. 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 113 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (61412014) 



Exhibit 8 

THE MERCER GROUP'S 
DECISION CZTTElUA FOR 

COLLABORATION AND CONTRACTING 

Ow criteria for collaboration and contracting decision is based on our thirty years of work and 
consulting experience in the public sector; research including ideas in books like "Reinventing 
Government;" and the lessons learned from assessment of collaboration and contracting 
opportunities for our consulting clients. 

Criteria from "Reinventifig Government" 

In "Reinventing Government," Osborn and Gaebler identify the following criteria to examine 
the strengths and weaknesses of specific collaboration and contracting opportunities: 

9 Service Specificity: How specificalIy can a service be defined so governments (the 
providers) can tell producers what it wants? 

> Availability of Producers: Are there enough quaIified producers to ensure competition? 

> Efficiency and Effectiveness: Can producers provide the service eficiently and 
effectively? 

P Scale of the Service: How large an organization is needed to produce the service? 

9 Relating Benefits and Costs: To what degree do users pay directly for the benefits? 

> Responsiveness to Customers: Is the provider customer fiiendly and responsive? 

9 Economic Equity: Can the service be provided equitably to all customers? 

> Equity for Minorities: Will minorities receive adequate benefits from the service or 
product? 

P Responsiveness to Government Direction: Will the producer adequately follow the 
government policy and specifications in delivering the service or product? 

> Size of the Government: Is the providing government big enough (and sophisticated 
enough) to enable it to provide effective oversight of another producer? 

THE MERCER GROUP. INC. 114 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



Mercer Group's Decision Criteria 

Based on our experience and supporting research, the Mercer Group has developed a set of 
sixteen decision criteria to evaluate the feasibility of cooperative approaches to the delivery of 
services. Some of these factors can be measured and quantified, while others must be assessed 
on more intangible factors. 

P Governance: 

Legal Authority: Do the governments have the legal authority to collaborate? 

Policy Compliance: Does the approach to collaboration meet policy and 
regulatory requirements of each community? 

Political Culture: Is the collaborative approach compatible with the political 
cultures, visions, and values of each community? 

Community Support: Do citizens, the business community, major stakeholders, 
and elected officials support collaboration in general and the specific proposal for 
service collaboration that is on the table? 

P Management: 

Management Culture: Are the government's managers and department heads 
ready for a collaborative approach? 

Management Skills: Do these managers have the skills and experience to 
effectively deliver the services under a coIlaborative model. 

Administration: Are policies, procedures, systems, and controls in pIace, or 
easily developable, to administer collaborative approaches, including 
communication and financial systems? 

Are financial, human resources, and other administrative policies, systems, and 
controls compatible, or easily made compatible, including pay plms and union 
agreements? 

Performance Measurement: Are performance measures, output and outcome 
data collection processes, and reporting processes in place to establish, track, and 
report performance? 

THF4 m R C E R  CROUP. INC. 115 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



P Assets and Resources: 

Facilities and Infrastructure: Are facilities and other infrastructure adequate to 
support the collaborative model? If not, can they be acquired at s reasonable cost 
that does not undermine the financial model? 

Technology: Are equipment and technology adequate to support the collaborative 
model? If not, can they be acquired at a reasonable cost that does not undermine 
the financial model? 

Fiscal Capacity: Do the governments have the fiscal capacity to implement the 
coIlaborative model? This question includes the adequacy and reasonableness of 
tax revenues, user fees and charges, assessments, and contract fees to support the 
collaborative model. 

People: Are the number and quality of service-providing staff adequate to 
implement the collaborative model? Are supervisors adequately skilled to 
manage assigned staff! If not, can they be acquired and/or trained at a reasonable 
cost that does not upset the financial model? 

P Services: 

Service Level Expectations: Will the quantity of services produced match 
customer and stakeholder expectations (not too low in particular)? 

Service Quality Expectations: Will the quality of services produced match 
customer and stakeholder expectations (not too low in particular)? 

Operational Effectiveness: Can operational challenges be resolved to justify 
implementing the collaborative approach? These challenges include different 
organizational and operational models; policies, procedures, and techniques; 
physical locations; organization and staffing plans; job responsibilities and job 
descriptions; union agreements; and equipment, markings, and gear 
specifications. 

Fiscal Effectiveness: Does the collaborative approach make financial and 
economic sense for each government in terms of immediate cost savings, future 
cost avoidance, potential gains in efficiency, affordability of apportioned shares or 
contract fees, and potential reductions in tax burdens? 

THE MERCER GROUP, INC. 116 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



Application o f  the Decision Criteria 

Preliminary research and fact finding is required to identify general and opportunity-specific 
factors that influence application of the Decision Criteria and, therefore, the feasibility of 
collaboration or contracting: 

B Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities, and Threats: A SWOT Assessment provides a 
general understanding of the collaboration and contracting opportunity, and the degree to 
which organizational and operational improvements are needed. 

l+ Organizational Culture and Management Philosophy: A cultural analysis indicates 
how well the collaborating/contracting organizations "fit" together in terms of culture and 
management philosophy. 

> Enablers and Inhibitors: These factors indicate the feasibility of collaboration and 
contracting in terms of governance, management, service delivery, and administrative 
support issues. 

The exhibits that follow present Decision Criteria Evaluation for a sample consolidation of all 
Public Safety services of a City and a Town: 

P Exhibit 1 compiles the pros and cons based on Enablers and Inhibitors (bolded items 
are most important!), 

P Exhibit 2 presenting ratings for each of the 16 decision criteria, comments, and an 
overall feasibility rating. Note that some criteria are rated 4, between 5=Feasible and 
3=Possible, or 2, between 3=Possible and 1-Unlikely. 

THE MERCER GROUP. MC. 117 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 



Table 1 
Pros and Cons for Consolidation of Ail Public Safety Agencies 

MAJOR ENABLERWBENEFITS 
Creation of a joint governing board 

Some cost savings are possible with 
fewer senior management staff and 
possibly patrol officers and firefighters 
(more of a financial benefit to the City) 

Unified services to cover both City and 
Town to ensure crime migration is dealt 
with effectively 

Better coordination of services in 
emergencies and disasters 

Better coordination of Police, Fire, and 
EMS personnel on a daily basis 

Higher levels of investigative and, 
possibly, patrol resources 

More opportunities for advancement and 
specialization, particularly for Town 
officers 

Less migration of officers to other 
jurisdictions due to pay and shift 
limitations 

MAJOR INHIBITORStDRAWBACKS 
Some loss of political control and 
oversight, but mitigated by a joint Public 
Safety Committee serving as a governing 
board 

Differences in current Fire and EMS 
models (department structure and full- 
time vs. paid-on-call firefighters 

May lack an adequate Public Safety HQ 
facility unless some positions can be 
based at the proposed RegionaI Training 
Center or other CitytTown facilities 

Potential difficulty in determining cost 
allocation methods (not a major problem) 

Ambulance service revenue sharing or  
shifting may be difficult to accomplish, 
particularly with fee revenues booked to 
the City's General Fund and per capita 
fess to the Town's General Fund. But 
costs will be avoided as personnel and 
equipment shift to a unified department 

Conversion of union agreements in Police 
and Fire/EMS (likely merged) 

THE MERCER GROUP, INC. I18 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 

Possibly fewer building and less 
equipment to manage 

Conversion to common specifications for 
equipment, vehicles, markings, tools, and 



Table 2 
Rating of Full Public Safety Consolidation 

THE MERCER GROUP, INC. 119 
Draft Management Study of the Mountain Brook Parks & Recreation Department (6/4/2014) 

j 

COMMENTS 

FEASIBILITY R4TING 

Political Culture and Community Support 
rated low (2) as this option may not be 
supported by elected officials and citizens. 

Management SkilIs and People scores 
likely would rise to 5 if a Public Safety 
Director is hired. 

Management Skills and Operational/Fiscal 
Effectiveness rated 4 as the City and 
Town don't have experience with this 
model, 
GOOD 



City of Mountain Brook 
Parks & Recreation Department 

City Council 

L 

I 
City Manager Psuks & Recreation Board 
Sam Gaston 

- -- ..- - - - . - . . - 

Superintendent I 

I I T  I I 
Shanda Williams 

-I/I Fl Brandon Harris YlFl 
Pierson Dick L Shawn Smith L L A  


	Pre-Meeting Agenda
	RSA & CIGNA Bonus
	Park & Rec Study

